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PART I 

        References in this Form 10-K to "Sonus Pharmaceuticals", "Sonus", the "Company", "we", "us" or "our" refer to Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. The information in this
Form 10-K contains certain forward-looking statements, including statements related to clinical trials, regulatory approvals, markets for the Company's products, new product
development, capital requirements and trends in its business that involve risks and uncertainties. The Company's actual results may differ materially from the results discussed
in the forward-looking statements. Factors that might cause such a difference include those discussed in "Business", "Risk Factors" and "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" as well as those discussed elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

    ITEM 1.    BUSINESS 

Overview

        Sonus Pharmaceuticals is developing novel small molecule drugs for the treatment of patients with cancer. Our objective is to identify opportunities where there is the
possibility for major improvements in patient treatments and where we believe we can mitigate development risk. We currently have one drug in clinical development and two
earlier stage programs. Our plan is to continue to develop our internal pipeline of clinical compound opportunities and to evaluate possible strategic alternatives, including in-
licensing, out-licensing and merger and acquisition opportunities, as a means of achieving our business strategies and enhancing stockholder value. In the fourth quarter of 2007
we engaged Ferghana Partners Inc., an international provider of independent financial advisory services to firms in the biotechnology, pharmaceuticals, diagnostics and
specialty chemicals industries, to assist us with these strategic alternatives.

Product Candidates

SN2310

        SN2310 Injectable Emulsion ("SN2310") is a novel camptothecin derivative. Camptothecins are an important class of anti-cancer drugs introduced in recent years;
however, the marketed camptothecin analogs, irinotecan (Camptosar®) and topotecan (Hycamtin®), have demonstrated limitations that may reduce their clinical utility.
Irinotecan and topotecan are used in the treatment of colorectal, lung, and ovarian cancers. SN2310 is a prodrug of SN-38. SN-38 is also the active moiety of irinotecan. Our
objective with SN2310 is to provide a product that has enhanced anti-tumor activity and improved tolerability compared with the approved camptothecin-based products, and is
ready-to-use. An Investigational New Drug Application ("IND") was submitted to the U.S. Food and Drug Administration ("FDA") for SN2310 in June 2006 and Phase 1
clinical testing was initiated in September 2006. We expect to close enrollment in this study and initiate a Phase 2 clinical trial in 2008. As this product candidate is early in
clinical development, we cannot give any assurance that this compound will be clinically successful.

TOCOSOL® Paclitaxel

        TOCOSOL Paclitaxel is a novel formulation of paclitaxel manufactured in a ready-to-use, injectable vitamin E-based emulsion formulation. On September 24, 2007 we
announced that TOCOSOL Paclitaxel failed to meet the primary endpoint in Phase 3 clinical testing. We have discontinued development of TOCOSOL Paclitaxel due to results
of the Phase 3 study, and the time and cost that would be required to conduct the necessary clinical studies to continue development, which at a minimum, would include
another Phase 3 pivotal trial. These closure activities were substantially complete by December 31, 2007.
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Research and Development Pipeline

        We continue to invest in the research and development of new oncology related product candidates. We have identified two areas of opportunity where we believe there is
the possibility for major improvements in patient treatments and where we believe we can mitigate development risk: (1) prodrugs of existing small molecules, where the novel
prodrug is designed to provide greater patient convenience and improved patient outcome; and (2) novel small molecules, where an opportunity exists, using known moieties, to
address clinical shortcomings of existing approved compounds. From these programs, Sonus has identified inhibitors of DNA methyl transferase and expects to select a lead
compound for further development in the second half of 2008. DNA methyl transferase inhibitors, such as the approved drugs azacytidine and decitabine, act by normalizing the
expression of repressed genes, leading to apoptosis (cell death) of malignant cells.

Market Overview

        Cancer is characterized by rapid, uncontrolled cell division resulting in the growth of an abnormal mass of cells generally referred to as a malignant tumor. Cancerous
tumors can arise in almost any tissue or organ, and cancer cells, if not eradicated, can spread, or metastasize, throughout the body. As these tumors grow, they cause damage to
the surrounding tissue and organs and commonly result in death if left untreated. Cancer is believed to occur as a result of a number of hereditary and environmental factors.
According to the American Cancer Society, cancer is the second leading cause of death in the United States and accounts for approximately one in every four deaths.
Approximately 565,000 Americans are expected to die of cancer in 2008. The National Institutes of Health estimated the direct medical cost of cancer to be $89 billion in 2007.

        Product candidates in our pipeline are in the early stages of development, and it is difficult to evaluate the potential markets for these product candidates as the areas of
potential application are diverse and specific applications are yet to be determined.

Collaboration and License Agreement with Bayer Schering Pharma AG

        On October 17, 2005, we entered into a License and Collaboration Agreement (the "Bayer Agreement") with Bayer Schering Pharma AG (formerly Schering AG), a
German corporation, pursuant to which, among other things, we granted Bayer Schering an exclusive, worldwide license to TOCOSOL Paclitaxel. On October 3, 2007, we
received notification from Bayer Schering of its decision to terminate the Bayer Agreement in accordance with its terms because the Phase 3 pivotal trial did not meet its
primary endpoint and the results of the trial did not support, in Bayer Schering's judgment, a submission for a New Drug Application with the FDA. In accordance with the
terms of the Bayer Agreement, all rights to TOCOSOL Paclitaxel have reverted to us. We do not expect recognition of any revenue or expense related to the Bayer Agreement
beyond December 31, 2007.

Research and Development

        We currently conduct research and development activities at our facilities in Bothell, Washington. We also engage in certain research, preclinical studies and clinical
development efforts at third party laboratories and other institutions. Our primary research and development efforts are currently directed at the development of SN2310 and
two other areas of research where we can use our expertise and technology to improve the safety or efficacy of oncology drugs.

        Our research and development activities for the last three years can be divided into research, preclinical and clinical development programs primarily associated with
TOCOSOL Paclitaxel as well as research, preclinical and clinical activities related to our other early stage product candidates.
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The approximate costs associated with these programs for the last three fiscal years were as follows (in millions):

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

TOCOSOL Paclitaxel  $ 17.9 $ 32.4 $ 21.2
Other clinical, preclinical and research programs  $ 9.2 $ 8.4 $ 3.0
    
Total research & development  $ 27.1 $ 40.8 $ 24.2
    

        We separately tracked all billable costs associated with TOCOSOL Paclitaxel as it was our lead product candidate and had been partnered with Bayer Schering. Costs
attributed to other clinical, preclinical and research projects largely represent our pipeline generating activities. See Item 7. "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations" for further discussion of research and development spending trends.

Government Regulations—Drug Approval Process

        Regulation by governmental authorities in the U.S. and other countries is a significant factor in our ongoing research and development activities and in the production and
marketing of our products. In order to undertake clinical tests, to produce and market products for human use, mandatory procedures and safety standards, established by the
FDA in the U.S. and by comparable agencies in other countries, must be followed.

        The standard process before a pharmaceutical agent may be marketed includes the following steps:

• Preclinical studies including laboratory evaluation and animal studies to test for initial safety and efficacy; 

• Submission to national health authorities of an IND, or Clinical Trials Application ("CTA") or equivalent dossier, which must be accepted by each national
health authority before human clinical trials may commence in that country; 

• Adequate and well-controlled clinical trials to establish the safety and efficacy of the drug in its intended population and use(s); 

• Submission to appropriate national and/or regional regulatory health authorities of a New Drug Application (NDA), or equivalent marketing authorization
application, which application is not automatically accepted for review; and 

• approval by appropriate regulatory health authorities of the marketing authorization application prior to any commercial sale or shipment of the drug in each
country or jurisdiction.

        As part of the regulatory health authority approval for each product, the drug-manufacturing establishment is subject to inspection by the FDA and must comply with
current Good Manufacturing Practices ("cGMP") requirements applicable to the production of pharmaceutical drug products. The facilities, procedures, and operations of
manufacturers must be determined to be adequate by the FDA before product approval.

        Preclinical studies include laboratory evaluation of the active drug substance and its formulation in animal studies to assess the potential safety and efficacy of the drug and
its formulation. Prior to initiating the first clinical testing of a new drug product candidate, the results of the preclinical studies are submitted to regulatory health authorities as
part of an IND or CTA, and must be accepted before the proposed clinical trial(s) can begin.

        Clinical trials for cancer therapeutics involve the administration of the investigational drug product to patients with a defined disease state, under the supervision of a
qualified principal investigator.
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Clinical trials are conducted in accordance with protocols that detail the parameters to be used to monitor safety and efficacy. Each protocol is submitted to regulatory health
authorities as part of the IND/CTA, in each country where clinical trials are to be conducted. Each clinical study is approved and monitored by independent Institutional Review
Boards or Ethics Committees who consider ethical factors, informed consent documents, the safety of human subjects and the possible liability of the institutions conducting a
clinical study. The Institutional Review Board or Ethics Committee may require changes in the clinical trials protocol, which may delay initiation or completion of the study.

        Clinical trials typically are conducted in three sequential phases, although the phases may overlap. In Phase 1, the initial introduction of the drug to humans, the drug is
tested for safety and clinical pharmacology. Phase 2 trials involve more detailed evaluation of the safety and efficacy of the drug in patients with a defined disease. Phase 3 trials
consist of large scale evaluations of safety and efficacy of the investigational product compared to accepted standard therapy in a defined disease.

        The process of completing clinical testing and obtaining regulatory health authority approval for a new product takes a number of years and requires the expenditure of
substantial resources. Regulatory health authorities may conclude that the data submitted in a marketing authorization application are not adequate to support an approval and
may require further clinical and preclinical testing, re-submission of the application, and further review. Even after initial approval has been obtained, further studies may be
required to provide additional data about the approved indication, and further studies will be required to gain approval for the use of a product for clinical indications other than
those for which the product was approved initially. Also, health authorities require post-marketing surveillance programs to monitor the drug product's side effects.

        Marketing of pharmaceutical products outside of the U.S. is subject to regulatory requirements that vary from country to country. In the European Union, the general trend
has been towards coordination of common standards for clinical testing of new drug products. Centralized approval in the European Union is coordinated through the European
Medicines Agency, or EMEA.

        The level of regulation outside the U.S. and European Union varies widely. The time required to obtain regulatory approval from regulatory agencies in each country may
be longer or shorter than that required for FDA or EMEA approval. In addition, in certain markets, reimbursement is subject to governmentally mandated prices.

        Many of the chemicals and compounds used in our research and development efforts are classified as hazardous materials under applicable federal, state and local
environmental laws and regulations. We are subject to regulations under state and federal law regarding occupational safety, laboratory practices, handling and disposing of
chemicals, environmental protection and hazardous substance control.

Competition

        The healthcare industry in general is characterized by extensive research efforts, rapid technological change and intense competition. We believe that other pharmaceutical
companies will compete with us in areas of research and development, acquisition of products and technology licenses, and the manufacturing and marketing of products that
could potentially compete with ours. We expect that competition will be based on safety, efficacy, ease of administration, breadth of approved indications, price, reimbursement
and physician and patient acceptance.

        The two approved camptothecins are irinotecan and topotecan with combined 2006 sales in excess of $1.1 billion. These products are approved for the treatment of
metastatic colorectal, small cell lung and ovarian cancer. Irinotecan came off patent in February 2008.
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        We believe that our ability to successfully compete in the biotechnology and pharmaceutical industries will be based on our ability to do the following:

• Develop proprietary products; 

• Attract and retain key scientific personnel; 

• Obtain patent or other protection for products; 

• Obtain required regulatory approvals; and 

• Manufacture, market and or license our products alone or with collaborative partners.

        Many of our competitors and potential competitors have substantially greater financial, technical and human resources than we do and have substantially greater
experience in developing products, obtaining regulatory approvals and marketing and manufacturing products. Companies that complete clinical trials, obtain required
regulatory approvals and commence commercial sales of their products before their competitors may achieve a significant competitive advantage if their products work through
a similar mechanism as our products. In addition, other technologies or products may be developed that have an entirely different approach that would render our technology
and products noncompetitive or obsolete.

Patents and Proprietary Rights

        We consider the protection of our technology to be important to our business. In addition to seeking U.S. patent protection for our inventions, we are also seeking patent
protection in other selected countries in order to broadly protect our proprietary rights. We also rely upon trade secrets, know-how, continuing technological innovations and
licensing opportunities to develop and maintain our competitive position.

        Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to obtain and defend patents and protect trade secrets. As of December 31, 2007, sixteen United States patents have been
issued to Sonus. A composition of matter patent covering SN2310 issued in the United States in 2007, and national stage applications have been filed in key countries. Nine
patents pertaining to our proprietary TOCOSOL technology have issued in the U.S., and TOCOSOL-related patents have also issued in Europe, Canada, Taiwan, Mexico,
Korea, and India. Additional patent applications covering our research programs are pending in the U.S. and other countries.

        The patent position of medical and pharmaceutical companies is highly uncertain and involves complex legal and factual questions. There can be no assurance that any
claims which are included in pending or future patent applications will be issued, that any issued patents will provide us with competitive advantage or will not be challenged by
third parties, or that existing or future patents of third parties will not have an adverse effect on our ability to commercialize our products. Furthermore, there can be no
assurance that other companies will not independently develop similar products, duplicate any of our products or design around patents that may be issued to us. Litigation or
administrative proceedings may be necessary to enforce any patents issued to us or to determine the scope and validity of others' proprietary rights.

        Our commercial success will depend in part on not infringing patents issued to competitors. There can be no assurance that patents belonging to competitors or others will
not require us to alter our products or processes, pay licensing fees or cease development of our current or future products. Further, there can be no assurance that we will be
able to license other technology that we may require at a reasonable cost or at all. Failure by us to obtain a license to any technology that we may require to commercialize our
products could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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        We have obtained registration for our trademarks TOCOSOL® and Sonus Pharmaceuticals® in the United States and in a number of foreign countries. There can be no
assurance that the registered or unregistered trademarks or trade names of our company will not infringe upon third party rights or will be acceptable to regulatory agencies.

        We also rely on unpatented trade secrets, proprietary know-how and continuing technological innovation, which we seek to protect, in part, by confidentiality agreements
with our corporate partners, collaborators, employees and consultants in our drug development research. There can be no assurance that these agreements will not be breached,
that we will have adequate remedies for any breach, or that our trade secrets or know-how will not otherwise become known or be independently discovered by competitors.
Further, there can be no assurance that we will be able to protect our trade secrets or that others will not independently develop substantially equivalent proprietary information
and techniques.

Product Liability

        The testing, marketing and sale of pharmaceutical products entails a risk of product liability claims by consumers and others. We currently maintain product liability
insurance for our clinical trials with limits of $10 million per claim and in the aggregate, which we believe to be adequate for current non-commercial applications of our
products. In the event of a successful suit against us, the lack or insufficiency of insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial
condition. Although we have never been subject to a product liability claim, there can be no assurance that the coverage limits of our insurance policies will be adequate or that
one or more successful claims brought against us would not have a material adverse effect upon our business, financial condition and results of operations. If any of our
products under development gain marketing approval from the FDA or other regulatory health authorities, there can be no assurance that adequate product liability insurance
will be available, or if available, that it will be available at a reasonable cost. Any adverse outcome resulting from a product liability claim could have a material adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Employees

        As of March 1, 2008, we had 48 employees, including five who work part-time. Of these, 30 were engaged in research and development, regulatory, clinical and
manufacturing activities, and 18 in business operations and administration. All of our employees are covered by confidentiality agreements. We consider our relations with our
employees to be good, and none of our employees is a party to a collective bargaining agreement.

        On November 1, 2007, the Company implemented a reduction of workforce ("Reduction of Workforce") pursuant to which the Company's workforce was reduced by 16
positions, or approximately 25%. The effective date of the Reduction of Workforce was November 30, 2007. The Company undertook the Reduction of Workforce in light of
the outcome of its Phase 3 Pivotal Trial for TOCOSOL Paclitaxel. These steps were taken in order to conserve cash and preserve the critical capabilities necessary to pursue the
highest priority development programs.

        In connection with the Reduction of Workforce, the Company incurred expenses associated with one-time termination benefits of approximately $1.2 million, including
approximately $1.1 million of severance benefits and $100,000 attributable to the continuation of medical insurance benefits. These expenses were recorded in the fourth quarter
of 2007.

Company Information

        Sonus Pharmaceuticals was incorporated in California in October 1991 and subsequently reorganized as a Delaware corporation in September 1995. The Company's
principal executive offices are located at 1522 217th Place SE, Suite 100, Bothell, Washington 98021, and its telephone number is (425) 487-9500.
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The Company makes its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports available on its website, at
http://www.sonuspharma.com, free of charge as soon as practicable after filing with the SEC. All such reports are also available free of charge via EDGAR through the SEC
website at www.sec.gov. In addition, the public may read and copy materials filed by the Company with the SEC at the SEC's public reference room located at 450 Fifth St.,
N.W., Washington, D.C., 20549. Information regarding operation of the SEC's public reference room can be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330.

    ITEM 1A.    RISK FACTORS 

        You should consider the risks below carefully in addition to other information contained in this report before engaging in any transaction involving shares of our common
stock. If any of these risks occur, they could seriously harm our business, financial condition or results of operations. In such case, the trading price of our common stock could
decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment. We undertake no obligation to publicly release the results of any revisions to any forward-looking statements to reflect
anticipated or unanticipated events or circumstances occurring after the date of such statements.

        We will need additional capital in the future to support the continued development of our product candidates and to fund continuing operations.

        Although, we expect that our cash requirements will decrease in future periods due to the discontinuation of development of TOCOSOL Paclitaxel, we will need additional
capital in 2009 to support the continued development of SN2310, other product candidates and to fund continuing operations. We believe that existing cash, cash equivalents
and marketable securities will be sufficient to fund current operations into the third quarter of 2009. Our future capital requirements depend on many factors including:

• our ability to obtain, and the timing of payments under, debt or equity financings; 

• timing and costs of preclinical development, clinical trials and regulatory approvals; 

• timing and cost of drug discovery and research and development; 

• entering into new collaborative or product license agreements for products in our pipeline; and 

• costs related to obtaining, defending and enforcing patents.

        Any future debt or equity financing, if available, may result in substantial dilution to existing stockholders, and debt financing, if available, may include restrictive
covenants.

        We may merge with or acquire other companies or drug candidates, and our failure to receive the anticipated benefits in these transactions could harm our business.

        We are actively seeking strategic opportunities, which may include a merger or acquisition, among other things. The success of any merger or acquisition depends, in part,
on our ability to realize the anticipated synergies, cost savings and growth opportunities from integrating the business of the merged or acquired company with our business.
The integration of two independent companies is a complex, costly and time-consuming process. The difficulties of combining the operations of two companies include, among
others:

• consolidating research and development operations; 

• retaining key employees; 

• consolidating corporate and administrative infrastructures; 

• preserving the research and development and other important relationships of the companies;
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• integrating and managing the technology of two companies; 

• using the merged or acquired company's liquid capital and other assets efficiently to develop the business of the combined company; 

• diverting management's attention from ongoing business concerns; and 

• coordinating geographically separate organizations.

        There can be no assurance that we will find any attractive strategic opportunities, or that if we find them, that we will be able to consummate a transaction on favorable
terms, or at all. If we do enter into a transaction, there can be no assurance that we will receive all of the anticipated benefits of any transaction, or that any of the risks described
above will not occur. Our failure to receive anticipated benefits of and our exposure to inherent risks in, any such transaction could significantly harm our business, financial
condition and operating results.

        Failure to satisfy NASDAQ Global Market listing requirements may result in our common stock being delisted from The NASDAQ Global Market.

        Our common stock is currently listed on The NASDAQ Global Market under the symbol "SNUS." For continued inclusion on The NASDAQ Global Market, we must
maintain, among other requirements, stockholders' equity of at least $10.0 million, a minimum bid price of $1.00 per share and a market value of our public float of at least
$5.0 million; or market capitalization of at least $50 million, a minimum bid price of $1.00 per share and a market value of our public float of at least $15.0 million. The closing
price of our common stock, as reported on the NASDAQ Global Market as of March 3, 2008 was $0.45 per share. On November 5, 2007, we received notice from NASDAQ
that we do not comply with NASDAQ's continued listing standards because the closing bid price of our common stock has been below the required minimum bid price of $1.00
for 30 consecutive business days. We have until May 5, 2008 to regain compliance with the minimum bid price requirement. If we do not regain compliance by May 5, 2008,
our common stock will be delisted if we do not appeal NASDAQ's determination to delist our common stock. Alternatively, we may apply for listing on The NASDAQ Capital
Market if we meet the initial listing standards for that market, in which case we would have an additional 180 days to regain compliance. In addition, as of December 31, 2007,
we had stockholders' equity of approximately $31.9 million. In the event that we fail to satisfy any of the listing standards on a continuous basis, our common stock may be
removed from listing on The NASDAQ Global Market. If our common stock were delisted from The NASDAQ Global Market and we are unable to transfer to The NASDAQ
Capital Market, trading of our common stock, if any, may be conducted in the over-the-counter market in the so-called "pink sheets" or, if available, the OTC Bulletin Board.
Consequently, broker-dealers may be less willing or able to sell and/or make a market in our common stock. Additionally, an investor would find it more difficult to dispose of,
or to obtain accurate quotations for the price of, our common stock. As a result of a delisting from The NASDAQ Global Market, it may become more difficult for us to raise
funds through the sale of our securities.

        The success of our potential products in research and preclinical studies does not guarantee that these results will be replicated in humans.

        Several of our drug development programs are currently in the research stage or in preclinical development. Our only product in clinical trials, SN2310, began Phase 1
clinical testing in September 2006 and is still in the early stages of clinical testing. Although our clinical development-stage drug candidate has shown favorable results in
preclinical studies, these results may not be replicated in our clinical trials. Before we make any products from our research and development programs commercially available,
we will need to conduct further research and development, including laboratory testing, animal studies, clinical studies, and obtain product approval from the appropriate
regulatory authorities. These programs may not move beyond their current stages of development. Even if our research does advance, we will need to engage in certain
additional preclinical development efforts to
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determine whether a product is sufficiently safe and effective to enter clinical trials. Consequently, there is no assurance that the results in our research and preclinical studies
are predictive of the results that we may see in our clinical trials, that they are predictive of whether any resulting products will be safe and effective in humans, or that the
resulting products will be approved by regulatory authorities.

        Our success is dependent on the proper management of our current and future business operations, and the expenses associated with them given our limited resources.

        Our business strategy requires us to manage our operations to provide for the continued development and potential commercialization of our drug candidates. If we are
unable to effectively manage our current operations given our limited resources, we may not be able to implement our business strategy and our financial condition and results
of operations may be adversely affected. If we are unable to effectively manage our expenses, we may find it necessary to reduce our expenses through a reduction in our
workforce and/or cancellation of research & development programs, which could adversely affect our operations.

        We may never realize revenue from product commercialization.

        Most of our attention and resources at this time are directed to the development of SN2310, a novel camptothecin derivative, as well as earlier stage oncology product
candidates. Significant expenditures in additional research and development, clinical testing, regulatory, manufacturing, and sales and marketing activities will be necessary in
order for us to gain marketing approval for our product candidates and subsequently commercialize them. There can be no assurance that product candidates under development
or any future products will be safe and efficacious. If the product candidates under development are ultimately ineffective in treating cancer, do not receive the necessary
regulatory approvals or do not obtain commercial acceptance, we will incur additional losses, our accumulated deficit will increase and our business will be materially adversely
affected.

        Even if we are successful in developing our products, there is no assurance that such products will receive regulatory approval or that a commercially viable market will
develop.

        We may not achieve our projected development goals in the time frames we announce and anticipate.

        We set goals for and make public statements regarding the timing of certain accomplishments, such as the commencement and completion of clinical trials, anticipated
regulatory approval dates and time of product launch, which we sometimes refer to as milestones. These milestones may not be achieved, and the actual timing of these events
can vary dramatically due to a number of factors such as delays or failures in our clinical trials, disagreements with future collaborative partners, the uncertainties inherent in the
regulatory approval process and manufacturing scale-up and delays in achieving manufacturing or marketing arrangements sufficient to commercialize our products. There can
be no assurance that our clinical trials will be completed, that we will make regulatory submissions or receive regulatory approvals as planned or that we will be able to launch
any of our products in anticipated timeframes. If we fail to achieve one or more of these milestones as planned, our business will be materially adversely affected, and the price
of our shares will decline.

        We have not yet commercialized any of our drug candidates; our ability to commercialize products is unproven.

        We have not yet commercialized any of our product candidates. Our commercialization of products is subject to several risks, including but not limited to:

• the possibility that a product is toxic, ineffective or unreliable; 

• failure to obtain regulatory approval for the product; 

• difficulties in manufacturing the product on a large scale;
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• difficulties in planning, coordinating and executing the commercial launch of the product; 

• difficulties in marketing, distribution or sale of the product; 

• the possibility of a failure to comply with laws and regulations related to the marketing, sale and reimbursement of the product; 

• competition from superior products; and 

• third-party patents that preclude us from marketing a product.

        Even if a product candidate is approved for commercial sale, significant strategic planning and resources will be necessary to effectively coordinate commercial launch of
the product in the approved indication or indications, and to effectively market, distribute and sell the product for use in the approved indication or indications. We currently
have limited marketing and no distribution capability.

        We have a history of operating losses which we expect will continue and we may never become profitable.

        We have experienced significant accumulated losses since our inception, and expect to incur net losses for the foreseeable future. These losses have resulted primarily from
expenses associated with our research and development activities, including nonclinical and clinical trials, and general and administrative expenses. As of December 31, 2007,
our accumulated deficit totaled $124.8 million. We anticipate that our operating losses will continue as we further invest in research and development for our products. Our
results of operations have varied and will continue to vary significantly and depend on, among other factors:

• our ability to obtain and timing of payments under debt or equity financings; 

• outcome related to strategic activities currently being evaluated; 

• timing and costs of preclinical development, clinical trials and regulatory approvals; 

• drug discovery and research and development; 

• entering into new collaborative or product license agreements for products in our pipeline; and 

• costs related to obtaining, defending and enforcing patents.

        Governmental regulatory requirements are lengthy and expensive and failure to obtain necessary approvals will prevent us from commercializing a product.

        We are subject to uncertain governmental regulatory requirements and a lengthy approval process for our products prior to any commercial sales of our products. The
development and commercial use of our products are regulated by the FDA, the EMEA, and comparable regulatory agencies in other countries. The regulatory approval process
for new products is lengthy and expensive. Before we can submit an application to the FDA and comparable international agencies, the product candidate must undergo
extensive testing, including animal studies and human clinical trials that can take many years and require substantial expenditures. Data obtained from such testing may be
susceptible to varying interpretations, which could delay, limit or prevent regulatory approval. In addition, changes in regulatory policy for product approval may cause
additional costs in our efforts to secure necessary approvals.

        Our product candidates are subject to significant uncertainty because they are in early stages of development and are subject to regulatory approval. The results of
preclinical and clinical testing of our products are uncertain and regulatory approval of our products may take longer or be more expensive than anticipated, which could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. We cannot predict if or when any of our products under development will be
commercialized.

12



 

        If we lose our key personnel or are unable to attract and retain qualified scientific and management personnel, we may be unable to become profitable.

        The loss of any key employees or the inability to recruit and retain qualified scientific personnel to perform research and development and qualified management personnel
could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. There can be no assurance that we will be able to attract and retain such
personnel on acceptable terms, if at all, given the competition for experienced scientists and other personnel among numerous medical and pharmaceutical companies,
universities and research institutions. We are highly dependent on our key executives, including Michael A. Martino, President & Chief Executive Officer and Alan Fuhrman,
Senior Vice President & Chief Financial Officer, both of whom have Change in Control Agreements with the Company.

        Future U.S. or international legislative or administrative actions also could prevent or delay regulatory approval of our products.

        Even if regulatory approvals are obtained, they may include significant limitations on the indicated uses for which a product may be marketed. A marketed product also is
subject to continual FDA, EMEA and other regulatory agency review and regulation. Later discovery of previously unknown problems or failure to comply with the applicable
regulatory requirements may result in restrictions on the marketing of a product or withdrawal of the product from the market, as well as possible civil or criminal sanctions. In
addition, if marketing approval is obtained, the FDA, EMEA or other regulatory agency may require post-marketing testing and surveillance programs to monitor the product's
efficacy and side effects. Results of these post-marketing programs may prevent or limit the further marketing of a product.

        The development of oncology related pharmaceutical products is extremely competitive, and if we fail to compete effectively, it would negatively impact our business.

        Competition in the development of pharmaceutical products is intense and expected to increase. We also believe that other medical and pharmaceutical companies will
compete with us in the areas of research and development, acquisition of products and technology licenses, and the manufacturing and marketing of our products. Success of
products in these fields will be based primarily on:

• efficacy; 

• safety; 

• price; 

• breadth of approved indications; and 

• physician, healthcare payor and patient acceptance.

        Many of our competitors and potential competitors, including large pharmaceutical, chemical and biotechnology concerns and universities and other research institutions,
have substantially greater financial, technical and human resources than we do and have substantially greater experience in developing products, obtaining regulatory approvals
and marketing and manufacturing pharmaceutical products. Accordingly, these competitors may succeed in obtaining FDA approval for their products more rapidly than we do.
In addition, other technologies or products may be developed that have an entirely different approach that would render our technology and products noncompetitive or
obsolete. If we fail to compete effectively, it would have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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        We rely on third party suppliers and manufacturers to produce products that we develop and failure to retain such suppliers and manufacturers would adversely impact
our ability to commercialize our products.

        We currently rely on third parties to supply the chemical ingredients necessary for our drug product candidates. The chemical ingredients for our products are manufactured
by a limited number of vendors. The inability of these vendors to supply medical-grade materials to us could delay the manufacturing of, or cause us to cease the manufacturing
of our products. We also rely on third parties to manufacture our products for research and development and clinical trials. Suppliers and manufacturers of our products must
operate under cGMP regulations, as required by the FDA, and there are a limited number of contract manufacturers that operate under cGMP regulations. cGMP are enumerated
in FDA regulations and guidance documents. The facilities, procedures, and operations of our contract manufacturers must be determined to be adequate by the FDA before
approval of product manufacturing for commercial use. Manufacturing facilities are subject to inspections by the FDA for compliance with cGMP, licensing specifications, and
other FDA regulations. Failure to comply with FDA and other governmental regulations can result in fines, unanticipated compliance expenditures, recall or seizure of products,
total or partial suspension of production and/or distribution, suspension of the FDA's review of NDAs, injunctions and criminal prosecution. Any of these actions could have a
material adverse effect on us. Our reliance on independent manufacturers involves a number of other risks, including the absence of adequate capacity, the unavailability of, or
interruptions in, access to necessary manufacturing processes and reduced control over delivery schedules. If our manufacturers are unable or unwilling to continue
manufacturing our products in required volumes or have problems with commercial scale-up, we will have to identify acceptable alternative manufacturers. The use of a new
manufacturer may cause significant interruptions in supply if the new manufacturer has difficulty manufacturing products to our specifications. Further, the introduction of a
new manufacturer may increase the variation in the quality of our products.

        If we fail to secure adequate intellectual property protection or become involved in an intellectual property dispute, it could significantly harm our financial results and
ability to compete.

        Our success will depend, in part, on our ability to obtain and defend patents and protect trade secrets. As of December 31, 2007, sixteen United States patents have been
issued to Sonus. A composition of matter patent covering SN2310 issued in the United States in 2007, and national stage applications have been filed in key countries. Nine
patents pertaining to our proprietary TOCOSOL technology have issued in the U.S., and TOCOSOL-related patents have also issued in Europe, Canada, Taiwan, Mexico,
Korea, and India. Additional patent applications covering our research programs are pending in the U.S. and other countries.

        The patent position of medical and pharmaceutical companies is highly uncertain and involves complex legal and factual questions. There can be no assurance that any
claims which are included in pending or future patent applications will be issued, that any issued patents will provide us with competitive advantages or will not be challenged
by third parties, or that the existing or future patents of third parties will not have an adverse effect on our ability to commercialize our products. Furthermore, there can be no
assurance that other companies will not independently develop similar products, duplicate any of our products or design around patents that may be issued to us. Litigation may
be necessary to enforce any patents issued to us or to determine the scope and validity of others' proprietary rights in court or administrative proceedings. Any litigation or
administrative proceeding could result in substantial costs to us and distraction of our management. An adverse ruling in any litigation or administrative proceeding could have a
material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

        Our commercial success will depend in part on not infringing patents issued to competitors.

        There can be no assurance that patents belonging to competitors will not require us to alter our products or processes, pay licensing fees or cease development of our
current or future products. Any
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litigation regarding infringement could result in substantial costs to us and distraction of our management, and any adverse ruling in any litigation could have a material adverse
effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, there can be no assurance that we will be able to license other technology that we may require at a
reasonable cost or at all. Failure by us to obtain a license to any technology that we may require to commercialize our products could have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, to determine the priority of inventions and the ultimate ownership of patents, we may participate in
interference, reissue or re-examination proceedings conducted by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office or in proceedings before international agencies with respect to any of
our existing patents or patent applications or any future patents or applications, any of which could result in loss of ownership of existing, issued patents, substantial costs to us
and distraction of our management.

        If we encounter difficulties enrolling patients in our clinical trials, our trials could be delayed or otherwise adversely affected.

        Clinical trials for our drug candidates require that we identify and enroll patients with the disorder or condition under investigation. We may not be able to enroll a
sufficient number of patients to complete our clinical trials in a timely manner.

        Patient enrollment is affected by factors including:

• design of the protocol; 

• the size of the patient population; 

• eligibility criteria for the study in question; 

• perceived risks and benefits of the drug under study; 

• Institutional Review Boards/Ethics Committees approvals to conduct the study; 

• availability of competing therapies; 

• efforts to facilitate timely enrollment in clinical trials; 

• the success of our personnel in making the arrangements with potential clinical trial sites necessary for those sites to begin enrolling patients; 

• patient referral practices of physicians; 

• availability of clinical trial sites; and 

• other clinical trials seeking to enroll subjects with similar profiles.

        If we have difficulty enrolling a sufficient number of patients to conduct our clinical trials as planned, we may need to delay or terminate ongoing or planned clinical trials,
either of which would have a negative effect on our business.

        Reimbursement procedures and future healthcare reform measures are uncertain and may adversely impact our ability to successfully sell pharmaceutical products.

        Our ability to successfully sell any pharmaceutical products will depend in part on the extent to which government health administration authorities, private health insurers
and other organizations will reimburse patients for the costs of future pharmaceutical products and related treatments. In the United States, government and other third-party
payors have sought to contain healthcare costs by limiting both coverage and the level of reimbursement for new pharmaceutical products approved for marketing by the FDA.
In some cases, these payors may refuse to provide any coverage for uses of approved products to treat medical conditions even though the FDA has granted marketing approval.
Healthcare reform may increase these cost containment efforts. We believe that managed care
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organizations may seek to restrict the use of new products, delay authorization to use new products or limit coverage and the level of reimbursement for new products.
Internationally, where national healthcare systems are prevalent, little if any funding may be available for new products, and cost containment and cost reduction efforts can be
more pronounced than in the United States.

        If our products are not accepted by the medical community our business will suffer.

        Commercial sales of our proposed products will substantially depend upon the products' efficacy and on their acceptance by the medical community. Widespread
acceptance of our products will require educating the medical community as to the benefits and reliability of the products. Our proposed products may not be accepted, and,
even if accepted, we are unable to estimate the length of time it would take to gain such acceptance.

        The businesses in which we engage have a risk of product liability, and in the event of a successful suit against us, our business could be severely harmed.

        The testing, marketing and sale of pharmaceutical products entails a risk of product liability claims by consumers and others. We currently maintain product liability
insurance for our clinical trials with limits of $10 million per claim and in the aggregate, which we believe to be adequate for current non-commercial and clinical applications
of our products. In the event of a successful suit against us, the lack or insufficiency of insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on our business and financial
condition.

        Since we use hazardous materials in our business, we may be subject to claims relating to improper handling, storage or disposal of these materials.

        Our research and development activities involve the controlled use of hazardous materials, chemicals and various radioactive compounds. We are subject to federal, state
and local laws and regulations governing the use, manufacture, storage, handling and disposal of such materials and certain waste products. Although we believe that our safety
procedures for handling and disposing of such materials comply with the standards prescribed by state and federal regulations, the risk of accidental contamination or injury
from these materials cannot be eliminated completely. In the event of such an accident, we could be held liable for any damages that result and any such liability not covered by
insurance could exceed our resources. Compliance with environmental laws and regulations may be expensive, and current or future environmental regulations may impair our
research, development or production efforts.

        Market volatility may affect our stock price and the value of an investment in our common stock may be subject to sudden decreases.

        The trading price for our common stock has been, and we expect it to continue to be, volatile. The price at which our common stock trades depends upon a number of
factors, including our historical and anticipated operating results, preclinical and clinical trial results, market perception of the prospects for biotechnology companies as an
industry sector and general market and economic conditions, some of which are beyond our control. Factors such as fluctuations in our financial and operating results, changes
in government regulations affecting product approvals, reimbursement or other aspects of our or our competitors' businesses, FDA review of our product development activities,
the results of preclinical studies and clinical trials, announcements of technological innovations or new commercial products by us or our competitors, developments concerning
key personnel and our intellectual property rights, significant collaborations or strategic alliances and publicity regarding actual or potential performance of products under
development by us or our competitors could also cause the market price of our common stock to fluctuate substantially. In addition, the stock market has from time to time
experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. These broad market fluctuations may lower the market price of our common stock. Moreover, during periods of stock
market price volatility, share prices of many biotechnology companies have often fluctuated in a manner not necessarily
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related to the companies' operating performance. Also, biotechnology or pharmaceutical stocks may be volatile even during periods of relative market stability. Accordingly,
our common stock may be subject to greater price volatility than the stock market as a whole.

        We may face fluctuations in operating results.

        Our operating results may rise or fall significantly from period to period as a result of many factors, including:

• the amount of research and development we engage in; 

• outcome related to strategic activities currently being evaluated; 

• the number of product candidates we have, their progress in research, preclinical and clinical studies and the costs involved in manufacturing them; 

• our ability to enter into new strategic relationships; 

• our ability to maintain our facilities to support our operations; 

• the costs involved in prosecuting, maintaining and enforcing patent claims; 

• the possibility that others may have or obtain patent rights that are superior to ours; 

• changes in government regulation; 

• changes in the price of our common stock or other variables used as a basis for valuing stock-based awards; 

• changes in accounting policies or principles; and 

• release of successful products into the market by our competitors.

        As a result, we may experience fluctuations in our operating results from quarter to quarter and continue to generate losses. Quarterly comparisons of our financial results
may not necessarily be meaningful, and investors should not rely upon such results as an indication of our future performance. In addition, investors may react adversely if our
reported operating results are less favorable than in a prior period or are less favorable than those anticipated by investors or the financial community, which may result in a
drop in the market price of our common stock.

        The impact of the recall by Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceuticals of certain batches of Taxol.

        In March 2007, Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceuticals recalled certain batches of Taxol due to potential lack of sterility assurance. At the time of the recall, there had been
no reports of non-sterile product and no stability failures had been detected. Among the recalled batches were those being used in the reference arm of the Phase 3 TOCOSOL
Paclitaxel pivotal study. Based on the available information, Sonus has no reason to believe that the recalled batches had an adverse impact on patients treated with those
batches in the Phase 3 study.

        The Company has returned all of the recalled material to its suppliers in accordance with the recall notice. On March 12, 2008, the Company received an initial refund
from its suppliers of approximately $850,000 for returned material. While we believe that we will receive a refund for the remaining returned material, we are not able to
reasonably estimate an amount of the refund at this time, and there can be no assurance that we will receive a full refund or that it will be received on a timely basis.

    ITEM 1B.    UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS 

        None.
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    ITEM 2.    PROPERTIES 

        During 2007 the Company occupied approximately 27,000 square feet of laboratory and office space in a single facility near Seattle, Washington. The lease on this facility
expired in July 2007, and was extended through December 31, 2007. In November 2006 the Company signed a lease agreement for a larger facility also near Seattle,
Washington. The Company moved into this facility on December 14, 2007. The new lease involves approximately 42,600 square feet of laboratory and office space in a single
facility. The lease has a 10 year term and includes two options to renew for additional 5 year periods. This facility is expected to be sufficient to meet the Company's current and
anticipated requirements throughout the term of the lease.

    ITEM 3.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 

        From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of our operations in the normal course of business. The Company currently is
not a party to any legal proceedings, the adverse outcome of which, in management's opinion, individually or in the aggregate, would have a material adverse effect on the
Company's results of operations or financial position.

    ITEM 4.    SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 

        No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2007.

  
PART II 

    ITEM 5.    MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY
SECURITIES 

        Our common stock first began trading on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol SNUS on October 12, 1995. No cash dividends have been paid on the common
stock, and we do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future. As of March 3, 2008, there were approximately 160 stockholders of record and
approximately 8,450 beneficial stockholders of our Common Stock. The high and low sales prices of our common stock as reported by Nasdaq Global Market (formerly the
NASDAQ National Market) for the periods indicated are as follows:

  

High

 

Low

2007       
First Quarter  $ 6.22 $ 4.55
Second Quarter   6.25  4.91
Third Quarter   5.43  .59
Fourth Quarter   .70  .40

2006       
First Quarter  $ 6.92 $ 4.85
Second Quarter   6.28  4.40
Third Quarter   5.15  4.25
Fourth Quarter   6.32  4.51

        The information required by this item regarding equity compensation plan information is set forth in Part III, Item 12 of this Annual Report filed on Form 10-K. We made
no purchases of equity securities during the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2007.
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Stock Performance Graph

        Set forth below is a line graph comparing the cumulative stockholder return on the Company's Common Stock with the cumulative total return of the Nasdaq Composite
Index and the Nasdaq Pharmaceutical Index for the five year period that commenced December 31, 2001 and ended on December 31, 2007.

  
COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among SONUS Pharmaceuticals, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The NASDAQ Pharmaceutical Index 

* $100 invested on 12/31/02 in stock or index-including reinvestment of dividends. Fiscal year ending December 31.
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    ITEM 6.    SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 

        The data set forth below should be read in conjunction with Item 7, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the
Financial Statements and Notes thereto appearing at Item 8 of this report.

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2004

 

2003

 

  

(in thousands, except per share data)

 
Statements of Operations Data:                 
 Total revenue  $ 20,131 $ 22,392 $ 8,254 $ — $ 25 
 Operating expenses  $ 35,366 $ 48,679 $ 30,064 $ 16,576 $ 10,663 
 Net loss  $ (13,063) $ (23,551) $ (21,097) $ (16,311) $ (10,467)
 Net loss per share:                 
  Basic  $ (0.35) $ (0.68) $ (0.88) $ (0.81) $ (0.68)
  Diluted  $ (0.35) $ (0.68) $ (0.88) $ (0.81) $ (0.68)
Shares used in calculation of net loss per share                 
  Basic   36,909  34,730  24,027  20,169  15,504 
  Diluted   36,909  34,730  24,027  20,169  15,504 
 

  

December 31,

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 

2004

 

2003

  

(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data:                
 Cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities  $ 34,199 $ 58,278 $ 49,318 $ 20,580 $ 19,664
 Accounts receivable from Bayer Schering Pharma AG  $ — $ 8,044 $ 7,057 $ — $ —
 Total assets  $ 45,249 $ 68,493 $ 57,914 $ 22,571 $ 21,468
 Current liabilities  $ 6,369 $ 19,910 $ 11,242 $ 3,255 $ 1,794
 Long-term liabilities  $ 6,976 $ 5,541 $ 11,408 $ 239 $ 364
 Stockholders' equity  $ 31,904 $ 43,042 $ 35,264 $ 19,077 $ 19,310

    ITEM 7.    MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

Forward-Looking Statements

        This report contains certain forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and we intend that such forward-looking statements be subject to the safe harbors created thereby. Examples of these forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to:

• timing and amount of future contractual payments, product revenue and operating expenses; 

• progress and preliminary results of clinical trials; 

• our anticipated future capital requirements and the terms of any capital financing agreements; 

• anticipated regulatory filings, requirements and future clinical trials; and 

• market acceptance of our products and the estimated potential size of these markets.

        While these forward-looking statements made by us are based on our current beliefs and judgments, they are subject to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual
results to vary from the projections in the forward-looking statements. You should consider the risks below carefully in addition
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to other information contained in this report before engaging in any transaction involving shares of our common stock. If any of these risks occur, they could seriously harm our
business, financial condition or results of operations. In such case, the trading price of our common stock could decline, and you may lose all or part of your investment.

        The discussion and analysis set forth in this document contains trend analysis, discussions of regulatory status and other forward-looking statements. Actual results could
differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statement as a result of the following factors, among others:

• future capital requirements and uncertainty of obtaining additional funding through corporate parterships, debt or equity financings; 

• ability to integrate and realize benefits from strategic opportunites, including mergers and acquisitions; 

• continued listing on the NASDAQ Global Market (formerly NASDAQ National Market); 

• results of research and preclinical studies may not be indicative of results in humans; 

• ability to build out our product candidate pipeline through internal development, product in-licensing or acquisition activities; 

• proper management of our operations will be critical to the success of the company; 

• history of operating losses and uncertainty of future financial results; 

• volatility in the value of our common stock; 

• dependence on the development and commercialization of products; 

• uncertainty of governmental regulatory requirements and lengthy approval process; 

• dependence on third parties for funding, clinical development, regulatory approvals, manufacturing and distribution; 

• dependence on key employees; 

• uncertainty of U.S. or international legislative or administrative actions; 

• competition and risk of competitive new products; 

• limited manufacturing experience and dependence on a limited number of contract manufacturers and suppliers; 

• ability to obtain and defend patents, protect trade secrets and avoid infringing patents held by third parties; 

• limitations on third-party reimbursement for medical and pharmaceutical products; 

• acceptance of our products by the medical community; 

• potential for product liability issues and related litigation; 

• potential for claims arising from the use of hazardous materials in our business; 

• fluctuations in our operating results; and 

• uncertainty relating to the timing and results of clinical trials.
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MD&A Overview

        In Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations we explain the general financial condition and the results of operations for our
Company, including:

• An overview of our business; 

• Results of operations and why those results are different from the prior year; and 

• The capital resources we currently have and possible sources of additional funding for future capital requirements.

Overview

        Sonus Pharmaceuticals is developing novel small molecule drugs for the treatment of patients with cancer. Our objective is to identify opportunities where there is the
possibility for major improvements in patient treatments and where we believe we can mitigate development risk. We currently have one drug in clinical development and two
earlier stage programs. Our plan is to continue to develop our internal pipeline of clinical compound opportunities and to evaluate possible strategic alternatives, including in-
licensing, out-licensing and merger and acquisition opportunities, as a means of achieving our business strategies and enhancing stockholder value. In the fourth quarter of 2007
we engaged Ferghana Partners Inc., an international provider of independent financial advisory services to firms in the biotechnology, pharmaceuticals, diagnostics and
specialty chemicals industries, to assist us with these strategic alternatives.

Results of Operations

        As of December 31, 2007, our accumulated deficit was approximately $124.8 million. We expect to incur substantial additional operating losses over the next several years.
Such losses have been and will continue to principally be the result of various costs associated with our discovery and research and development programs. Substantially all of
our working capital in recent years has resulted from equity financings and payments under corporate partnership agreements. Our ability to ever achieve a consistent, profitable
level of operations depends in large part on obtaining regulatory approval for future product candidates in addition to successfully manufacturing and marketing those products
once they are approved. Even if we are successful in the aforementioned activities our operations may not be profitable.

Collaboration and License Agreement with Bayer Schering

        On October 17, 2005, Sonus entered into a Collaboration and License Agreement with Bayer Schering Pharma AG, pursuant to which, among other things, we granted
Bayer Schering an exclusive, worldwide license to TOCOSOL® Paclitaxel. At that time, the parties agreed to a core development program consisting of the initial pivotal trial
in metastatic breast cancer, trials for additional indications and trials to support launch of TOCOSOL Paclitaxel, and agreed to share equally in the costs of the core development
program. In connection with the Bayer Agreement, the Company and an affiliate of Bayer Schering entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement whereby the Company sold
3,900,000 shares of common stock for an aggregate of $15.7 million and warrants to purchase 975,000 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase price of $122,000.

        On October 3, 2007, Sonus received notification from Bayer Schering of its decision to terminate the Bayer Agreement in accordance with its terms because the Phase 3
pivotal trial did not meet its primary endpoint and the results of the trial did not support, in Bayer Schering's judgment, a submission for a New Drug Application with the FDA.
The termination was effective on November 2, 2007. In accordance with the terms of the Bayer Agreement, all rights to TOCOSOL Paclitaxel have reverted back to Sonus. We
have discontinued development of TOCOSOL Paclitaxel due to results of
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the Phase 3 study and the time and cost that would be required to conduct the necessary clinical studies to continue development, which at a minimum, would include another
Phase 3 pivotal trial. These closure activities were substantially complete by December 31, 2007. Due to the termination of the Bayer Agreement by Bayer Schering, in October
2007, the Company recognized $6.9 million of revenue in the fourth quarter of 2007, which represents the balance of the unamortized deferred revenue from the upfront license
fee. During 2007, the Company recognized a total of $11.0 million of revenue from amortization of the deferred revenue, and $9.1 million of revenue related primarily to
reimbursable Phase 3 activity through the date of termination and expenses associated with the termination of the Phase 3 trial. The Company does not expect recognition of any
revenue or expense related to the Bayer Agreement beyond 2007. The final net billing between the Company and Bayer Schering was completed during the fourth quarter of
2007. Settlement of the final amount outstanding was received from Bayer Schering in December 2007. No receivables from or payables to Bayer Schering are outstanding at
December 31, 2007.

Years Ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006

        Our revenue was $20.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared with $22.4 million for 2006. Revenue in 2007 and 2006 was fully attributable to the
Bayer Agreement. In 2007 we recognized $11.0 million of revenue in amortization of the upfront license fee, including $6.9 million in the fourth quarter, which represents the
balance of the unamortized deferred revenue due to the termination of the Bayer Agreement. An additional $9.1 million in research and development reimbursements were
recognized under the terms of the Bayer Agreement in 2007. There was a final net billing to Bayer Schering in the fourth quarter of 2007 for accrued expenses related primarily
to reimbursable Phase 3 activity through the date of termination and expenses associated with the termination of the Phase 3 trial. The Company does not expect recognition of
any revenue or expense related to the Bayer Agreement beyond 2007.

        Our research and development (R&D) expenses were $27.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared with $40.8 million for 2006. The decrease in 2007 was
primarily the result of lower spending on clinical trials and drug supply and manufacturing costs related to the Phase 3 trial for TOCOSOL Paclitaxel, which was terminated in
the fourth quarter of 2007. We expect R&D expenses to decrease in 2008 due to the termination of the TOCOSOL Paclitaxel program in 2007.

        Our general and administrative (G&A) expenses were $8.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared with $7.9 million for 2006. The 2007 increase was
primarily related to increased market research conducted on TOCOSOL Paclitaxel in the first three quarters prior to the termination of the program, and costs associated with
staff reductions in the fourth quarter. We expect G&A expenses to be lower than levels experienced in 2007; however, should we enter into any strategic transaction G&A
expenses could be affected.

        Our total operating expenses in 2008 are expected to decrease from 2007 levels due to the termination of research and development activities for TOCOSOL Paclitaxel and
the reduction of workforce which was effective November 30, 2007. We estimate that R&D spending will comprise approximately 65%-70% of the anticipated spending in
2008. A significant portion of the R&D spending will be devoted to development activities for SN2310 and other compounds in our pipeline. These estimates and actual
expenses are subject to change depending on many factors.

        Our interest income, net of interest expense, was $2.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared with $2.8 million for 2006. The 2007 decrease was due
primarily to lower levels of invested cash in 2007.

        The Company had no income tax expense in 2007, 2006 or 2005 as it had incurred pretax losses.
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Years Ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005

        Our revenue was $22.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared with $8.3 million for 2005. Revenue in 2006 and 2005 was fully attributable to the
Bayer Agreement. We recognized $5.5 million in amortization of the upfront license fee and an additional $16.9 million in research and development reimbursements under the
terms of our agreement with Bayer Schering.

        Our research and development (R&D) expenses were $40.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared with $24.2 million for 2005. The 2006 increase was
primarily the result of the spending associated with the Phase 3 clinical trial for TOCOSOL Paclitaxel including both clinical and drug supply and manufacturing costs (both
control and study drug) as well as costs associated with the implementation of SFAS 123R.

        Our general and administrative (G&A) expenses were $7.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared with $5.9 million for 2005. The 2006 increase was
primarily attributed to costs associated with the implementation of SFAS 123R as well as market research conducted on TOCOSOL Paclitaxel as that product moved closer to
FDA submission.

        Our interest income, net of interest expense, was $2.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared with $708,000 for 2005. The 2006 increase was due
primarily to higher levels of invested cash in 2006 in addition to generally higher interest rates throughout 2006.

        The Company had no income tax expense in 2006, 2005 or 2004 as it had incurred pretax losses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

        We have historically financed operations with proceeds from equity financings and payments under collaboration agreements with third parties. At December 31, 2007, we
had cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities totaling $34.2 million compared to $58.3 million at December 31, 2006. The decrease was primarily due to the net loss of
$13.1 million, which includes $11.0 million of revenue recognized in 2007 from amortization of the upfront license fee received by Sonus in prior years, in addition to timing of
items accrued in 2006 and paid in 2007.

        Net cash used in operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was $23.3 million, $19.7 million and $8.4 million, respectively. Expenditures
in all periods were primarily a result of R&D expenses, including clinical trial costs, and G&A expenses in support of our operations and product development activities. R&D
expenses were primarily related to TOCOSOL Paclitaxel and to a lesser extent other potential product candidates. We believe that G&A expenses will decrease in 2008 due to
staff reductions which were effective in the fourth quarter of 2007. We expect R&D expenses to decrease in 2008 due to the termination of the TOCOSOL Paclitaxel program in
2007. We recorded $20.1 million in revenue in 2007, $22.4 million in 2006 and $8.3 million in 2005, all of which was fully attributable to the Bayer Agreement. We expect no
revenue or expense related to the Bayer Agreement beyond 2007. We paid no corporate income taxes in any of the periods presented.

        Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was ($6.1) million, ($23.0) million and $20.1 million,
respectively. The net cash used in investing activities during 2007 and 2006 was primarily due to transactions involving marketable securities in the normal course of business in
addition to purchases of fixed assets. Activity related to marketable securities relates primarily to the investment of money raised in equity financings or received under the
Bayer Agreement. The related maturities and sales of those investments provide us with working capital on an as-needed basis. We also initiate shifts between cash equivalent
securities and marketable securities based on our cash needs and the prevailing interest rate environment.
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        Net cash provided by financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, was $0.2 million, $29.1 million and $37.2 million, respectively. The net
cash provided by financing activities in 2007 was primarily due to the issuance of common stock under employee benefit plans and the exercise of common stock warrants.The
net cash provided by financing activities in 2006 and 2005 primarily related to proceeds from equity financing, the exercise of common stock warrants and the issuance of
common stock under employee benefit plans.

        We expect that our cash requirements will decrease in 2008 due to the termination of development of TOCOSOL Paclitaxel and related staff reductions. Under our current
forecasted cash needs, which assume continued development of SN2310 and other earlier stage product candidates, we believe that existing cash, cash equivalents and
marketable securities will be sufficient to fund expected operations into the third quarter of 2009. We will need additional capital in 2009 to support the continued development
SN2310, other product candidates and to fund continuing operations. Our future capital requirements depend on many factors including:

• our ability to obtain and timing of payments under equity or debt financings; 

• outcome related to strategic activities currently being evaluated; 

• timing and costs of preclinical development, clinical trials and regulatory approvals; 

• timing and cost of drug discovery and research and development; 

• entering into new collaborative or product license agreements for products in our pipeline; and 

• costs related to obtaining, defending and enforcing patents.

        We have contractual obligations in the form of operating leases which expire between 2010 and 2017. We signed a new facility lease in November 2006. The new facility
lease has a term of 10 years with a provision for two additional five year renewals. The term commencement date for the new lease is January 1, 2008. The following table
summarizes our contractual obligations under these agreements as of December 31, 2007:

Contractual Obligations

 

Total

 

Less than
1 year

 

1-3 years

 

3-5 years

 

More than
5 years

Operating lease obligations  $ 21,655,816 $ 1,929,120 $ 3,979,216 $ 4,171,944 $ 11,575,536
      

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

        We have no off-balance sheet arrangements and have not entered into any transactions involving unconsolidated, limited purpose entities.

Lease Agreement

        In November 2006 the Company entered into a new operating lease agreement for combined laboratory and office space. Our previous operating lease for facilities expired
December 31, 2007, and we moved into the newly leased facility in December 2007. The new lease, as amended in 2007, is for approximately 42,600 square feet and expires on
December 31, 2017, with a provision for two additional five year renewals. In connection with the new lease, we received landlord-provided incentives of approximately
$7.7 million in the form of tenant improvements, which have been recorded as additions to fixed assets and deferred rent liabilities and will be amortized over the inital ten year
term of the lease. In connection with our new lease arrangement, we were required to provide a cash security deposit of approximately $497,000 of which approximately
$440,000 was paid upon lease signing in November 2006, and the remainder was paid in February 2008. In addition, the lease stipulates the Company must issue a standby
letter of credit for approximately $500,000 which is expected to be issued early in 2008.
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Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

        We prepare our financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. As such, we are required to make certain
estimates, judgments and assumptions that we believe are reasonable based upon the information available. These estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods presented. Actual results could differ
significantly from those estimates under different assumptions and conditions. We believe that the following discussion addresses our most critical accounting estimates which
are those that are most important to the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and which require our most difficult and subjective judgments, often as a
result of the need to make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. We also have other policies that we consider key accounting policies; however,
these policies do not meet the definition of critical accounting estimates, because they do not generally require us to make estimates or judgments which are difficult or
subjective.

• Cash, Cash Equivalents and Marketable Securities.  We consider investments in highly liquid instruments purchased with a remaining maturity at purchase of
90 days or less to be cash equivalents. Investments with a remaining maturity at purchase in excess of 90 days are classified as marketable securities. The
amounts are recorded at cost, which approximate fair market value. Our cash equivalents and marketable securities consist principally of commercial paper,
money market securities, repurchase agreements, corporate bonds/notes and government agency securities. We have classified our entire investment portfolio as
available-for-sale. Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses reported as a separate component of stockholders' equity
and included in accumulated other comprehensive income. The amortized cost of investments is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of
discounts to maturity. Such amortization and accretion are included in interest income. Interest earned on securities is included in interest income. We consider
marketable securities with maturity greater than twelve months long-term and maturity less than twelve months short-term. 

• Revenue Recognition.  Since inception, we have generated revenue from collaborative agreements, licensing fees and from the assignment of developed and
patented technology. These arrangements may include upfront non-refundable payments, development milestone payments, payments for research and
development services performed and product sales royalties or revenue. Our revenue recognition policies are based on the requirements of SEC Staff Accounting
Bulletin No. 104 "Revenue Recognition," and, for contracts with multiple deliverables, we allocate arrangement consideration based on the fair value of the
elements under guidance from Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 00-21 ("EITF 00-21"), "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables." Under EITF 00-
21, revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables are divided into separate units of accounting and revenue is allocated to these units based upon relative fair
values with revenue recognition criteria considered separately for each unit.

Nonrefundable upfront technology license fees, for product candidates where we are providing continuing services related to product development, are deferred
and recognized as revenue over the estimated development period.

The timing and amount of revenue that we recognize from licenses of technology, either from upfront fees or milestones where we are providing continuing
services related to product development, is primarily dependent upon our estimates of the development period. We define the development period as the point
from which research activities commence up to FDA approval of our submission assuming no further research is necessary. As product candidates move
through the development process, it is necessary to revise these estimates to consider changes to the product development cycle, such as changes in the clinical
development plan,
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regulatory requirements, or various other factors, many of which may be outside of our control. Should our clinical development plans change, as a result of
regulatory or other matters, we would adjust our development period estimates accordingly. The impact on revenue of changes in our estimates and the timing
thereof is recognized prospectively over the remaining estimated product development period. Revenue from research and development services performed
under collaboration agreements is generally recognized in the period when the services are performed. Payments received in excess of amounts earned are
recorded as deferred revenue.

• Research and Development Expenses.  Pursuant to SFAS No. 2 "Accounting for Research and Development Costs," our research and development costs are
expensed as incurred. Research and development expenses include, but are not limited to, payroll and personnel expenses, lab expenses, clinical trial and related
clinical manufacturing costs, facilities and overhead costs. Clinical trial expenses, which are included in research and development expenses and represent a
significant portion of our research and development expenditures, represent obligations resulting from our contracts with various clinical research organizations
in connection with conducting clinical trials for our product candidates. We recognize expenses for these contracted activities based on a variety of factors,
including actual and estimated labor hours, clinical site initiation activities, patient enrollment rates, estimates of external costs and other activity-based factors.
We believe that this method best approximates the efforts expended on a clinical trial with the expenses we record. We adjust clinical expense estimates when
actual results are available. 

• Stock-based Compensation.  We adopted the requirements of SFAS 123R, "Share-Based Payment," effective January 1, 2006, utilizing the "modified
prospective" method. We use the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model as the most appropriate fair-value method for our awards and recognize
compensation cost on a straight-line basis over our awards' vesting periods in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. In valuing our options using the
Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model, we make assumptions about risk-free interest rates, dividend yields, volatility and weighted average expected lives
of the options. Risk-free interest rates are derived from United States treasury securities as of the option grant date. Dividend yields are based on our historical
dividend payments, which have been zero to date. Volatility is derived from the historical volatility of our common stock as traded on NASDAQ. Forfeiture
rates are estimated using historical actuals over the estimated life of the option grant. These rates are adjusted on a quarterly basis and any change in
compensation expense is recognized in the period of the change. The weighted average expected lives of the options is based on historical experience of option
exercises and the average vesting option schedule. For unvested awards granted prior to the adoption date, compensation expense is based on the original grant
date fair value measurement under SFAS 123. We currently believe that the assumptions used to generate those fair values are appropriate. 

• Income Taxes.  Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of the Financial Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income
Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" ("FIN 48"). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. At the date of adoption of FIN 48, we had no unrecognized
tax benefits and expected no significant changes in unrecognized tax benefits in the next twelve months. The adoption of this statement did not result in a
cumulative accounting adjustment and did not impact our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

We recognize interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions in income tax expense when applicable. To date, there have been no interest or penalties
charged to the Company in relation to the underpayment of income taxes. Due to the uncertainty of ultimately realizing tax benefits, we record a valuation
allowance equal to our total net deferred tax assets.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

        In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements," which establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement does not require any new fair value measurements, but increases consistency and
comparability in the use of fair value measurements and calculations. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007 and for interim periods within those fiscal years. Management does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material effect on our financial position
or results of operations.

        In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment to FASB Statement
No. 115". SFAS 159 allows companies to choose to measure eligible assets and liabilities at fair value with changes in value recognized in earnings. Fair value treatment for
eligible assets and liabilities may be elected either prospectively upon initial recognition, or if an event triggers a new basis of accounting for an existing asset or liability.
SFAS 159 is effective in the first quarter of 2008, and the Company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on its financial position and results of operations.

        In June 2007, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF No. 07-03, Accounting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments for Goods or Services to Be Used in Future Research
and Development Activities, or EITF 07-03. EITF 07-03 requires that nonrefundable advance payments for goods or services that will be used or rendered for future research
and development activities be deferred and capitalized and recognized as an expense as the goods are delivered or the related services are performed. EITF 07-03 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, and will be adopted by the Company in the first quarter of 2008. The adoption of EITF 07-3 will have the effect of changing
our policy on nonrefundable prepayments for research and development services whereby such costs will be deferred and recognized as the services are rendered as compared to
the existing policy whereby such payments are charged to research and development expense as paid. This change may have an impact on financial condition and the results of
operations in future periods.

        In December 2007, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF No. 07-01, Accounting for Collaborative Arrangements Related to the Development and Commercialization of
Intellectual Property, or EITF 07-01. EITF 07-01 discusses the appropriate income statement presentation and classification for the activities and payments between the
participants in arrangements related to the development and commercialization of intellectual property. The sufficiency of disclosure related to these arrangements is also
specified. EITF 07-01 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. As a result, EITF 07-01 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. We do not
expect the adoption of EITF 07-01 to have a material impact on either our financial position or results of operations.

    ITEM 7A.    QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 

Interest rate risk:

        The market risk inherent in our marketable securities portfolio represents the potential loss arising from adverse changes in interest rates. If market rates hypothetically
increase immediately and uniformly by 100 basis points from levels at December 31, 2007, the decline in the fair value of the investment portfolio would not be material. Given
the short-term nature of our investment portfolio, we do not expect our operating results or cash flows to be affected to any significant degree by a sudden change in market
interest rates.
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Foreign currency exchange risk:

        We are exposed to risks associated with foreign currency transactions on certain contracts denominated in foreign currencies (primarily Euro and Pound Sterling
denominated contracts) and we have not hedged these amounts. As our unhedged foreign currency transactions fluctuate, our earnings might be negatively affected.
Accordingly, changes in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to the Euro/Pound Sterling might have an adverse effect on our reported results of operations and financial
condition, and fluctuations in exchange rates might harm our reported results and accounts from period to period. The impact of foreign currency fluctuations related to realized
gains and losses during the past three years has not been material.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

        We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the Company) as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the related statements of
operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

        We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

        In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. at December 31, 2007
and 2006, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.

        We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 14, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

        As discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2007 the Company changed its accounting for income taxes upon the adoption of Financial Accounting
Standard Board Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes an interpretation of FASB Statement No.109 and as discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements, in 2006 the Company changed its method of accounting for stock-based compensation upon the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
No. 123R Share-Based Payment, effective January 1, 2006.

  ERNST & YOUNG LLP

Seattle, Washington
March 14, 2008
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Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

Balance Sheets 

  

December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 
ASSETS        
Current assets:        
 Cash and cash equivalents  $ 6,535,272 $ 35,771,784 
 Marketable securities   27,663,554  22,506,086 
 Accounts receivable from Bayer Schering Pharma AG   —  8,043,771 
 Interest receivable   456,149  79,439 
 Other current assets   576,905  445,031 
    
  Total current assets   35,231,880  66,846,111 

Equipment, furniture and leasehold improvements, net   9,577,567  1,186,174 
Other assets   439,822  460,717 
    

Total assets  $ 45,249,269 $ 68,493,002 
    
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY        
Current liabilities:        
 Accounts payable  $ 1,462,444 $ 898,486 
 Accounts payable to Bayer Schering Pharma AG   —  1,473,050 
 Accrued expenses   4,141,273  11,928,124 
 Deferred revenue from Bayer Schering Pharma AG   —  5,545,919 
 Current portion of deferred rent   765,005  — 
 Other current liabilities   —  64,792 
    
  Total current liabilities   6,368,722  19,910,371 

Deferred revenue from Bayer Schering Pharma AG, less current portion   —  5,540,694 
Deferred rent, less current portion   6,976,130  — 

Commitments and contingencies        
Stockholders' equity:        
 Preferred stock, $.001 par value:        
  5,000,000 shares authorized; no shares outstanding   —  — 
 Common stock, $.001 par value:        

  
75,000,000 shares authorized; 37,048,335 and 36,853,974 shares issued and outstanding in 2007 and
2006, respectively   156,704,899  154,780,939 

 Accumulated deficit   (124,801,837)  (111,738,669)
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)   1,355  (333)
    
  Total stockholders' equity   31,904,417  43,041,937 
    

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity  $ 45,249,269 $ 68,493,002 
    

See accompanying notes.
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Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

Statements of Operations 

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Revenue:           
 Collaboration revenue from Bayer Schering Pharma AG  $ 20,130,663 $ 22,391,858 $ 8,254,483 

Operating expenses:           
 Research and development   27,146,725  40,795,790  24,209,152 
 General and administrative   8,218,890  7,882,762  5,854,550 
     
  Total operating expenses   35,365,615  48,678,552  30,063,702 
     

Operating loss   (15,234,952)  (26,286,694)  (21,809,219)

Other income (expense):           
 Other (expense) income   (125,351)  (112,490)  4,160 
 Interest income   2,297,569  2,850,872  714,866 
 Interest expense   (434)  (2,984)  (6,824)
     
  Total other income, net   2,171,784  2,735,398  712,202 
     

Net loss  $ (13,063,168) $ (23,551,296) $ (21,097,017)
     

Basic and diluted net loss per share  $ (0.35) $ (0.68) $ (0.88)

Shares used in calculation of basic and diluted net loss per share   36,909,462  34,729,930  24,027,127 

See accompanying notes.
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Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

Statements of Stockholders' Equity 

 
 

Common Stock        
   

 

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Income

(Loss)

   

  

Shares

 

Amount

 

Accumulated Deficit

 

Total

 
Balance at January 1, 2005  21,352,795  86,202,180  (67,090,356)  (34,643)  19,077,181 
Comprehensive income (loss):                
 Net loss  —  —  (21,097,017)  —  (21,097,017)

 
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on
investments  —  —  —  42,142  42,142 

              
 Comprehensive loss              (21,054,875)
Issuance of common stock under
employee benefit plans  86,082  185,117  —  —  185,117 
Exercise of common stock warrants  575,000  2,351,750  —  —  2,351,750 
Issuance of common stock and common
stock warrants (net of offering costs of
$1,180,669)  8,551,869  34,704,619  —  —  34,704,619 
       
Balance at December 31, 2005  30,565,746  123,443,666  (88,187,373)  7,499  35,263,792 
Comprehensive income (loss):                
 Net loss  —  —  (23,551,296)  —  (23,551,296)

 
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on
investments  —  —  —  (7,832)  (7,832)

              
 Comprehensive loss              (23,559,128)
Issuance of common stock under
employee benefit plans  84,553  292,113  —  —  292,113 
 Stock-based compensation expense  —  2,173,379  —  —  2,173,379 
Exercise of common stock warrants  73,675  301,330  —  —  301,330 
Issuance of common stock (net of offering
costs of $2,079,549)  6,130,000  28,570,451  —  —  28,570,451 
       
Balance at December 31, 2006  36,853,974 $ 154,780,939 $ (111,738,669) $ (333) $ 43,041,937 
       
Comprehensive income (loss):                
 Net loss  —  —  (13,063,168)  —  (13,063,168)

 
Change in unrealized gain (loss) on
investments  —  —  —  1,688  1,688 

              
 Comprehensive loss              (13,061,480)
Issuance of common stock under
employee benefit plans  179,317  205,325  —  —  205,325 
 Stock-based compensation expense  —  1,661,195  —  —  1,661,195 
Exercise of common stock warrants  14,044  57,440  —  —  57,440 
       
Balance at December 31, 2007  37,047,335 $ 156,704,899 $ (124,801,837) $ 1,355 $ 31,904,417 
       

See accompanying notes.
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Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

Statements of Cash Flows 

  

Year Ended December 31,

 

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Operating activities:           
Net loss  $ (13,063,168) $ (23,551,296) $ (21,097,017)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:           
 Depreciation and amortization   655,689  609,615  592,825 
 Non-cash stock-based compensation   1,661,195  2,173,379  — 
 Accretion of net discount on securities   (402,655)  (301,312)  (6,669)
 (Gain) loss on sale of capital equipment   22,015  —  (4,160)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:           
 Accounts receivable from Bayer Schering Pharma AG   8,043,771  (987,131)  (7,056,640)
 Interest receivable   (376,710)  (67,657)  113,972 
 Other current assets   (131,874)  (115,026)  3,067 
 Long term receivable from Bayer Schering Pharma AG   —  87,500  — 
 Other long term assets   20,895  (356,978)  (139,739)
 Accounts payable   563,958  (362,027)  445,310 
 Accounts payable to Bayer Schering Pharma AG   (1,473,050)  1,473,050  — 
 Accrued expense   (7,786,851)  7,520,280  2,046,338 
 Deferred rent   68,095  —  — 
 Deferred revenue from Bayer Schering Pharma AG   (11,086,613)  (5,545,919)  16,632,532 
 Other current liabilities   (50,029)  50,029  — 
 Other liabilities   —  (307,060)  110,968 
     
Net cash used in operating activities   (23,335,332)  (19,680,553)  (8,359,213)

Investing activities:           
Purchases of capital equipment and leasehold improvements   (1,396,057)  (789,386)  (119,443)
Proceeds from sale of capital equipment   —  —  4,160 
Purchases of marketable securities   (46,444,749)  (22,585,008)  — 
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities   40,745,514  —  7,360,968 
Proceeds from maturities of marketable securities   946,110  372,402  12,851,484 
     
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities   (6,149,182)  (23,001,992)  20,097,169 

Financing activities:           
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under employee benefit plans   205,325  292,113  185,117 
Proceeds from exercise of common stock warrants   57,440  301,330  2,351,750 
Payments on lease obligations   (14,763)  (27,410)  (78,444)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and common stock warrants under equity
financings, net of issuance costs   —  28,570,451  34,704,619 
     
Net cash provided by financing activities   248,002  29,136,484  37,163,042 
     
Change in cash and cash equivalents for the year   (29,236,512)  (13,546,061)  48,900,998 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   35,771,784  49,317,845  416,847 
     

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year  $ 6,535,272 $ 35,771,784 $ 49,317,845 
     

Supplemental cash flow information:           
 Interest paid  $ 434 $ 2,984 $ 6,824 
 Non-cash leasehold incentives provided by landlord   7,673,040  —  — 

See accompanying notes.
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Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 

Notes to Financial Statements 

1. Description of Business and Summary of Accounting Policies

Overview

        Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. ("Sonus" or the "Company") is developing novel small molecule drugs for the treatment of patients with cancer. Our objective is to identify
opportunities where there is the possibility for major improvements in patient treatments and where we believe we can mitigate development risk. We currently have one drug in
clinical development and two earlier stage programs. Our plan is to continue to develop our internal pipeline of clinical compound opportunities and to evaluate possible
strategic alternatives, including in-licensing, out-licensing and merger and acquisition opportunities, as a means of achieving our business strategies and enhancing stockholder
value.

Liquidity

        The Company has historically experienced recurring losses from operations which have generated an accumulated deficit of $124.8 million through December 31, 2007.
For the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company used $23.3 million of cash to fund operations. At December 31, 2007, the Company had cash, cash equivalents and
marketable securities of $34.2 million, and working capital of $28.9 million.

        We expect that our cash requirements will decrease in 2008 due to the termination of the development of TOCOSOL Paclitaxel and related staff reductions. Under our
current forecasted cash needs, which assume continued development of our lead compound, SN2310, and other earlier stage product candidates, we believe that existing cash,
cash equivalents and marketable securities will be sufficient to fund expected operations into the third quarter of 2009. We will need additional capital in 2009 to support the
continued development of SN2310, other product candidates and to fund continuing operations.

        On November 1, 2007, the Company implemented a reduction of workforce ("Reduction of Workforce") pursuant to which the Company's workforce was reduced by 16
positions, or approximately 25%. The Company undertook the Reduction of Workforce in light of the outcome of its Phase 3 Pivotal Trial for TOCOSOL Paclitaxel. These
steps were taken in order to conserve cash and preserve the critical capabilities necessary to pursue the highest priority development programs. Additional information is
provided in Note 6.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

        Cash and cash equivalents consist of highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less at the date of purchase. The Company was invested in $5.3 million in
money market funds and $1.0 million in commercial paper at December 31, 2007. The Company had $35.6 million of repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2006.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

        The carrying amounts of certain of the Company's financial instruments, principally cash and cash equivalents, and marketable securities approximate fair value due to
their short maturities.

Marketable Securities

        The Company classifies the marketable securities portfolio as available-for-sale, and such securities are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices, with the
unrealized gains and losses included as
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a component of accumulated other comprehensive income(loss). Interest earned on securities available-for-sale is included in interest income. The carrying value of debt
securities in this category is adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts to maturity. Such amortization and accretion are included in interest income.
Realized gains and losses and declines in value judged to be other than temporary on securities available-for-sale also are included in interest income. The cost of securities sold
is based on the specific identification method.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

        The Company invests its excess cash in accordance with investment guidelines, which limit the credit exposure to any one financial institution other than securities issued
by the U.S. government. The guidelines also specify that the financial instruments are issued by institutions with strong credit ratings. These securities generally mature within
one year or less and in some cases are not collateralized. At December 31, 2007 the average days to maturity of the Company's portfolio of cash equivalents and marketable
securities was 73 days.

Revenue Recognition

        Since inception, we have generated revenue from collaborative agreements, licensing fees and from the assignment of developed and patented technology. These
arrangements may include upfront non-refundable payments, development milestone payments, payments for research and development services performed and product sales
royalties or revenue. Our revenue recognition policies are based on the requirements of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 104 "Revenue Recognition," and, for contracts with
multiple deliverables, we allocate arrangement consideration based on the fair value of the elements under guidance from Emerging Issues Task Force Issue 00-21 ("EITF 00-
21"), "Revenue Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables." Under EITF 00-21, revenue arrangements with multiple deliverables are divided into separate units of accounting
and revenue is allocated to these units based upon relative fair values with revenue recognition criteria considered separately for each unit.

        Nonrefundable upfront technology license fees, for product candidates where we are providing continuing services related to product development, are deferred and
recognized as revenue over the estimated development period.

        The timing and amount of revenue that we recognize from licenses of technology, either from upfront fees or milestones where we are providing continuing services
related to product development, is primarily dependent upon our estimates of the development period. We define the development period as the point from which research
activities commence up to FDA approval of our submission assuming no further research is necessary. As product candidates move through the development process, it is
necessary to revise these estimates to consider changes to the product development cycle, such as changes in the clinical development plan, regulatory requirements, or various
other factors, many of which may be outside of our control. Should our clinical development plans change, as a result of regulatory or other matters, we would adjust our
development period estimates accordingly. The impact on revenue of changes in our estimates and the timing thereof is recognized prospectively over the remaining estimated
product development period. Revenue from research and development services performed under collaboration agreements is generally recognized in the period when the
services are performed. Payments received in excess of amounts earned are recorded as deferred revenue.
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Research and Development Costs

        Research and development ("R&D") costs including personnel costs, supplies, depreciation and other indirect costs are expensed as incurred. Costs are expensed the earlier
of when amounts are due or when services are performed. R&D expenses consist of independent R&D costs and costs associated with collaborative R&D arrangements.

Other (expense) income

        Other (expense) income includes net transaction gains and losses on foreign denominated payables of approximately ($125,000), ($115,000) and $0 in 2007, 2006 and
2005, respectively.

Equipment, Furniture and Leasehold Improvements

        Equipment, furniture and leasehold improvements are stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line basis generally over three years for equipment and
5 years for furniture and fixtures which represents the estimated useful life of the assets. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the lesser of the economic useful lives of
the improvements or the term of the related lease. The current lease has 10 years remaining. Repair and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Segment Information

        The Company follows the requirements of SFAS No. 131, "Disclosure About Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information." The Company has one operating
segment, the development of oncology drugs.

Stock-Based Compensation

        The Company adopted the requirements of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment," (or "SFAS 123R") on January 1, 2006, utilizing the "modified
prospective" method. The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model as the most appropriate fair-value method for its awards and recognizes compensation
cost on a straight-line basis over its awards' vesting periods in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. In valuing its options using the Black-Scholes-Merton option
pricing model, the Company makes assumptions about risk-free interest rates, dividend yields, volatility and weighted average expected lives, including estimated forfeiture
rates, of the options. Risk-free interest rates are derived from United States treasury securities as of the option grant date. Dividend yields are based on the Company's historical
dividend payments, which have been zero to date. Volatility is derived from the historical volatility of the Company's common stock as traded on NASDAQ. Forfeiture rates are
estimated using historical actual forfeiture rates that resulted over the estimated life of the option grant for options granted as of the beginning of the forfeiture measurement
period. These rates are adjusted on a quarterly basis and any change in compensation expense is recognized in the period of the change. The weighted average expected life of
the options is based on historical experience of option exercises and the average vesting option schedule. In November 2005, the FASB issued FASB Staff Position No. 123R-
3, "Transition Election Related to Accounting for the Tax Effects of Share-Based Payment Awards". The Company has adopted the simplified method to calculate the beginning
balance of the additional paid-in-capital (or "APIC") pool of excess tax benefit, and to determine the subsequent effect on the APIC pool and the Statements of Cash Flows of
the tax effects of stock-based compensation awards that were outstanding upon our adoption of SFAS 123R.
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        For unvested awards granted prior to the adoption date, compensation expense is based on the original grant date fair value measurement under SFAS 123, "Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation".

Income Taxes

        The Company utilizes the liability method of accounting for income taxes as required by SFAS No. 109, "Accounting for Income Taxes." Under this method, deferred tax
assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between financial reporting and tax reporting bases of assets and liabilities and are measured using enacted tax rates
and laws that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets to the
amounts expected to be realized. Due to uncertainty of the Company's ability to generate taxable income, a full valuation allowance has been established as of December 31,
2007.

        Effective January 1, 2007, the Company adopted the provisions of Financial Interpretation No. 48, "Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of
FASB Statement No. 109" ("FIN 48"). FIN 48 prescribes a recognition threshold and a measurement attribute for the financial statement recognition and measurement of tax
positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return. At the date of adoption of FIN 48, we had no unrecognized tax benefits and expected no significant changes in
unrecognized tax benefits in the next twelve months. The adoption of this statement did not result in a cumulative accounting adjustment and did not impact our financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

Comprehensive Income

        In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 130, "Reporting Comprehensive Income" (SFAS 130), the Company has reported comprehensive
income, defined as net income (loss) plus other comprehensive income(loss), in the Statements of Stockholders' Equity. The total of other accumulated comprehensive
income(loss) consists of unrealized gains and losses on certain cash equivalents and marketable securities.

Per Share Data

        Basic net loss per share is based on the weighted average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net loss per share is based on the weighted average number of
common shares and dilutive potential common shares. Dilutive potential common shares are calculated under the treasury stock method and consist of unexercised stock
options and warrants.

Use of Estimates and Reclassifications

        The preparation of financial statement in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

        Certain reclassifications of prior period amounts have been made to our financial statements to conform to the current period presentation.
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Recent Accounting Pronouncements

        In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued SFAS No. 157, "Fair Value Measurements," which establishes a framework for measuring
fair value, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This statement does not require any new fair value measurements, but increases consistency and
comparability in the use of fair value measurements and calculations. This statement is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15,
2007 and for interim periods within those fiscal years. Management does not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 157 will have a material effect on our financial position
or results of operations.

        In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, "The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities—Including an amendment to FASB Statement
No. 115". SFAS 159 allows companies to choose to measure eligible assets and liabilities at fair value with changes in value recognized in earnings. Fair value treatment for
eligible assets and liabilities may be elected either prospectively upon initial recognition, or if an event triggers a new basis of accounting for an existing asset or liability.
SFAS 159 is effective in the first quarter of 2008, and the Company is currently evaluating the impact of adoption on its financial position and results of operations.

        In June 2007, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF No. 07-03, Accounting for Nonrefundable Advance Payments for Goods or Services to Be Used in Future Research
and Development Activities, or EITF 07-03. EITF 07-03 requires that nonrefundable advance payments for goods or services that will be used or rendered for future research
and development activities be deferred and capitalized and recognized as an expense as the goods are delivered or the related services are performed. EITF 07-03 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2007, and will be adopted by the Company in the first quarter of 2008. The adoption of EITF 07-3 will have the effect of changing
our policy on nonrefundable prepayments for research and development services whereby such costs will be deferred and recognized as the services are rendered as compared to
the existing policy whereby such payments are charged to research and development expense as paid. This change may have an impact on financial condition and the results of
operations in future periods.

        In December 2007, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF No. 07-01, Accounting for Collaborative Arrangements Related to the Development and Commercialization of
Intellectual Property, or EITF 07-01. EITF 07-01 discusses the appropriate income statement presentation and classification for the activities and payments between the
participants in arrangements related to the development and commercialization of intellectual property. The sufficiency of disclosure related to these arrangements is also
specified. EITF 07-01 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. As a result, EITF 07-01 is effective for us in the first quarter of fiscal 2009. We do not
expect the adoption of EITF 07-01 to have a material impact on either our financial position or results of operations.

2. Collaboration and License Agreement with Bayer Schering

        On October 17, 2005, the Company entered into a Collaboration and License Agreement with Bayer Schering, a German corporation, pursuant to which, among other
things, the Company granted Bayer Schering an exclusive, worldwide license to TOCOSOL Paclitaxel, its anti-cancer product candidate (the "Product"). With respect to the
Product, Bayer Schering paid Sonus an upfront license fee of $20 million and paid Sonus for research and development services performed equal to 50% of eligible product
research and development costs (in certain cases the reimbursement rate was 100%).
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In connection with the Collaboration and Licensing Agreement, the Company and an affiliate of Bayer Schering entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement whereby the
Company sold 3,900,000 shares of common stock for an aggregate of $15.7 million and warrants to purchase 975,000 shares of common stock for an aggregate purchase price
of $122,000.

        On October 3, 2007, Sonus received notification from Bayer Schering of its decision to terminate the Collaboration and License Agreement in accordance with its terms
because the Phase 3 pivotal trial did not meet its primary endpoint and the results of the trial do not support, in Bayer Schering's judgment, a submission for a New Drug
Application with the United States Food and Drug Administration ("FDA"). The termination was effective on November 2, 2007. In accordance with the terms of the
Agreement, all rights to TOCOSOL Paclitaxel have reverted back to Sonus. The Company has discontinued development of TOCOSOL Paclitaxel due to results of the Phase 3
study. These closure activities were substantially complete by December 31, 2007.

        Due to the termination of the Agreement, in the fourth quarter of 2007 the Company recognized as revenue the balance of the unamortized deferred revenue from the
upfront license fee. Revenue recognized from the amortization of the deferred revenue from the upfront license fee was $11.0 million, $5.5 million and $1.2 million in 2007,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The Company reduced the revenue to be recognized over the development period related to the $20 million upfront license payment by
$2.3 million, which represented the excess fair value of the warrants purchased by an affiliate of Bayer Schering above the amount paid in connection with its equity investment
in Sonus. This adjustment was made because both the equity investment and the upfront payment were considered to be a single unit of accounting.

        The Company recognized revenue of $9.1 million, $16.9 million and $7.1 million in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively for reimbursement of expenses related to research
and development services performed for the Phase 3 trial for TOCOSOL Paclitaxel and related drug supply and manufacturing costs, including expenses associated with the
termination of the Phase 3 trial. In addition, the Company recognized expenses of $4.1 million in 2007 and $1.7 million in 2006 for the Company's share of development
expenses incurred by Bayer Schering in accordance with the terms of the Agreement. There were no such expenses in 2005.

        The Company does not expect to earn revenue or incur expense related to the Agreement with Bayer Schering beyond 2007. The final net billing between the Company
and Bayer Schering was completed during the fourth quarter of 2007. Settlement of the final amount outstanding was received from Bayer Schering in December 2007. No
receivables from, or payables to, Bayer Schering are outstanding at December 31, 2007.
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        Marketable securities consist of the following:

  

Cost

 

Unrealized Gains

 

Unrealized Losses

 

Fair Value

2007:             
Corporate debt securities  $ 26,019,825 $ 1,910  — $ 26,021,735
Government debt securities   1,344,037  160  —  1,344,197
Asset-backed securities   298,342  —  (720)  297,622
     
  $ 27,662,204 $ 2,070 $ (720) $ 27,663,554
     

2006:             
Corporate debt securities  $ 21,100,297 $ 3,068 $ (1,111) $ 21,102,254
Asset-backed securities   1,406,481  —  (2,649)  1,403,832
     
  $ 22,506,778 $ 3,068 $ (3,760) $ 22,506,086
     

        There were no significant realized or unrealized gains or losses on the sales of marketable securities in 2007, 2006 or 2005. All of the marketable securities held as of
December 31, 2007 had maturities of one year or less. The Company only invests in A (or equivalent) rated securities with maturities of one year or less. The Company does not
believe that there are any permanent impairments related to unrealized losses for the year ended December 31, 2007 given the quality of the investment portfolio and its short-
term nature.

4. Equipment, Furniture and Leasehold Improvements

        Equipment, furniture and leasehold improvements consist of the following:

  

2007

 

2006

 
Laboratory equipment  $ 3,378,189 $ 3,973,654 
Office furniture and equipment   885,455  1,584,861 
Leasehold improvements   7,673,040  1,390,879 
    
   11,936,684  6,949,394 
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization   (3,293,885)  (5,763,220)
    
   8,642,799  1,186,174 
Construction in progress   934,768  — 
    
  $ 9,577,567 $ 1,186,174 
    

        We held laboratory equipment acquired under capital leases with an original cost of $392,968 as of December 31, 2007 and 2006. Accumulated depreciation on this
equipment was $392,968 and $380,500 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

        During 2007, in preparation for a move to a new facility, the Company disposed of $1,756,163 of furniture, fixtures and equipment that would no longer be utilized by the
Company. Accumulated depreciation on this equipment was $1,737,954 at the time of disposal. In addition, at the expiration of its facilities lease the Company abandoned
leasehold improvments that had been made to the facility of

42



 

Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

Notes to Financial Statements (Continued)

4. Equipment, Furniture and Leasehold Improvements (Continued)

$1,390,879. Accumulated amortization of these leasehold improvements at the lease expiration was $1,387,073.

5. Accrued Expenses

        Accrued expenses consist of the following:

  

2007

 

2006

Clinical trials  $ 2,627,765 $ 8,497,278
Product manufacturing   —  1,617,580
Severance   908,496  —
Compensation   227,044  1,459,128
Other   377,968  354,138
   
  $ 4,141,273 $ 11,928,124
   

6. Reduction of Workforce

        On November 1, 2007, the Company implemented a reduction of workforce ("Reduction of Workforce") pursuant to which the Company's workforce was reduced by 16
positions, or approximately 25%. The effective date of the Reduction of Workforce was November 30, 2007. The Company announced the Reduction of Workforce in light of
the outcome of its Phase 3 Pivotal Trial for TOCOSOL Paclitaxel. These steps were taken in order to conserve cash and preserve the critical capabilities necessary to pursue the
highest priority development programs. The total cost of the Reduction of Workforce was approximately $1.2 million, which consisted of payments for severance and medical
insurance and was recognized as expense in the fourth quarter of 2007. Severance expense of approximately $575,000 and $625,000 was recognized in research and
development expense and general and administrative expense, respectively, in the fourth quarter of 2007. The following table summarizes the severance expense activity:

Severance expense recorded in 2007  $ 1,192,659
Cash Payments made in 2007   284,163
  
 Accrued severance as of December 31, 2007  $ 908,496
  

        The severance accrual as of December 31, 2007 was paid in the first quarter of 2008.

7. Other assets

        Other assets consist of the following:

  

2007

 

2006

Deposit on facility lease  $ 439,822 $ 439,822
Long-term portion of prepaid insurance   —  20,895
   
  $ 439,822 $ 460,717
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        The Company recorded no income tax expense or benefit during 2007, 2006 or 2005.

        A reconciliation of the Federal Statutory tax rate of 34% to the Company's effective income tax rate follows:

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Statutory tax rate  (34.00)% (34.00)% (34.00)%
Research Credits  12.61 (1.99) (1.67)
Permanent difference  0.05 0.04 3.67 
Change in valuation allowance  19.87 35.08 33.63 
Other  1.47 .87 (1.63)
     
Effective tax rate  — — — 
     

        Significant components of the Company's net deferred tax assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

  

2007

 

2006

 
Deferred tax assets:        
Federal net operating loss carryforwards  $ 40,251,000 $ 32,863,000 
Deferred Revenue   —  3,769,000 
Accrued expenses   239,000  195,000 
Research and development credits   1,471,000  3,119,000 
Stock Options   1,304,000  739,000 
Book depreciation expense in excess of tax depreciation expense   (48,000)  (62,000)
    
Gross deferred tax assets   43,217,000  40,623,000 
Valuation allowance for net deferred tax assets   (43,217,000)  (40,623,000)
    
Net deferred tax assets  $ — $ — 
    

        Due to the uncertainty of the Company's ability to generate taxable income to realize its net deferred tax assets at December 31, 2007 and 2006, a valuation allowance has
been recognized for financial reporting purposes. The Company's valuation allowance for deferred tax assets increased $2.6 million and $8.3 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in the deferred tax assets in 2007 is primarily the result of increasing net operating loss carryforwards.

        At December 31, 2007 the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $119 million for income tax reporting purposes and research and
development tax credit carryforwards of approximately $1.5 million. The federal operating loss carryforwards and research and development credits will expire between 2008
and 2028. To the extent that net operating loss carryforwards, when realized, relate to stock option deductions of approximately $3 million, the resulting benefit will be credited
to stockholders' equity.

        The initial public offering of common stock by the Company in 1995 caused an ownership change pursuant to applicable regulations in effect under the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986. Therefore, the
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Company's use of losses incurred through the date of ownership change will be limited during the carryforward period and may result in the expiration of net operating loss
carryforwards before utilization.

        The Company adopted the provisions of FASB Interpretation No. 48 Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, on January 1, 2007. The Company has no unrecognized
tax benefits which would require an adjustment to the January 1, 2007 beginning balance of retained earnings. The Company had no unrecognized tax benefits at January 1,
2007 and at December 31, 2007.

        The Company recognizes interest accrued and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in tax expense. During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, the
Company recognized no interest and penalties.

9. Stockholders' Equity

Common Stock

        At December 31, 2007, the Company had shares of common stock reserved for possible future issuance as follows:

Stock options outstanding  4,278,960
Warrants outstanding  4,080,533
Shares available for future grant under stock plans  5,325,366
  
  13,684,859
  

Common Stock Issuances

        In May 2006, the Company issued approximately 6.1 million shares of common stock in a registered direct offering for gross proceeds of $30.6 million (approximately
$28.6 million net of transaction costs). The common stock was sold at a price of $5.00 per share and was previously registered through a shelf registration statement on Form S-
3 that was declared effective by the SEC in April 2006.

        In October 2005, the Company issued 3,900,000 shares of common stock and warrants to purchase 975,000 shares of common stock to Schering Berlin Venture
Corporation for aggregate consideration of $15.8 million in connection with the Collaboration and License Agreement with Bayer Schering. The common stock was sold at
$4.02 per share, which was equal to the per share closing price of the Company's common stock as reported on the Nasdaq National Market on October 14, 2005, the trading
day immediately preceding the date of the Securities Purchase Agreement. The five-year warrants were sold at a price of $0.125 per share underlying each warrant, have an
exercise price of $4.42 per share and expire in October 2010.

        In August 2005, the Company sold 4.7 million shares of common stock and warrants to purchase up to 2.3 million shares of common stock in a private placement
transaction for gross proceeds of $17.8 million (approximately $16.6 million net of transaction costs). The common stock was sold at a price of $3.77 per share. The five-year
warrants were sold at a price of $0.125 per share underlying each warrant, have an exercise price of $4.15 per share and expire in August 2010.
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Stock Warrants

        At December 31, 2007, there were warrants outstanding to purchase 4.1 million shares of common stock at exercise prices ranging from $4.09 to $4.42 per share and
expiration dates ranging from July 2008 to October 2010. During 2007, the Company recorded $57,440 in proceeds from the issuance of 14,044 shares of common stock from
the exercise of common stock warrants. During 2006, the Company recorded $301,330 in proceeds from the issuance of 73,675 shares of common stock from the exercise of
common stock warrants.

Stock Options

        The Company has stock option plans whereby shares of common stock are reserved for future issuance pursuant to stock option grants or other issuances. Under the 2000
Stock Incentive Plan, an incremental number of shares equal to four percent of the Company's common stock outstanding as of December 31 of each year commencing
December 31, 2000 are made available for issuance under the plan up to a lifetime maximum of five million shares. The Company reached the lifetime cap in 2006. In 2007
Sonus shareholders approved a new incentive plan entitled the "2007 Performance Incentive Plan." Under the term of this plan the Company can issue up to 3,900,000
additional shares of the Company's common stock through the grant of stock options and restricted stock. Employee stock options vest over a period of time determined by the
Board of Directors, generally four years, and director stock options are generally fully vested on the date of grant. Stock options generally are granted at the fair market value
on the date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant.

Adoption of SFAS 123R

        The Company adopted the requirements of SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), "Share-Based Payment," (or "SFAS 123R") on January 1, 2006, utilizing the "modified
prospective" method. The Company uses the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model as the most appropriate fair-value method for its awards and recognizes compensation
cost on a straight-line basis over its awards' vesting periods in accordance with the provisions of SFAS 123R. In valuing its options using the Black-Scholes-Merton option
pricing model, the Company makes assumptions about risk-free interest rates, dividend yields, volatility and weighted average expected lives, including estimated forfeiture
rates, of the options. Risk-free interest rates are derived from United States treasury securities as of the option grant date. Dividend yields are based on the Company's historical
dividend payments, which have been zero to date. Volatility is derived from the historical volatility of the Company's common stock as traded on NASDAQ. Forfeiture rates are
estimated using historical actual forfeiture rates that resulted over the estimated life of the option grant for options granted as of the beginning of the forfeiture measurement
period. These rates are adjusted on a quarterly basis and any change in compensation expense is recognized in the period of the change. The weighted average expected life of
the options is based on historical experience of option exercises and the average vesting option schedule.

        For unvested awards granted prior to the adoption date, compensation expense is based on the original grant date fair value measurement under SFAS 123, "Accounting for
Stock-Based Compensation". We currently believe that the assumptions used to generate those fair values are appropriate and therefore have not revised those calculations.
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Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R

        The Company previously applied Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees," and related Interpretations and
provided the required pro forma disclosures of SFAS No. 123.

        The pro forma information for the year ended December 31, 2005 was as follows:

  

2005

 
Net loss, as reported  $ (21,097,017)
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported net loss   — 

Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based
method   (1,629,317)
   

Pro forma net loss  $ (22,726,334)
   

Loss per share:     
Basic and diluted-as reported  $ (0.88)
Basic and diluted-pro forma  $ (0.95)

Impact of the adoption of SFAS 123R

        The Company elected to implement SFAS 123R using the modified prospective application method. Accordingly, during the year ended December 31, 2006, the Company
recorded stock-based compensation expense totaling the amount that would have been recognized had the fair value method been applied since the effective date of SFAS 123
for unvested options outstanding as of January 1, 2006 and recorded compensation expense under the provisions of SFAS 123R for options granted during the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006. Previously reported amounts have not been restated. As the Company uses a full valuation allowance with respect to deferred taxes, the adoption
of SFAS 123R had no impact on deferred taxes or cash flow.

        The effect of recording stock-based compensation for the periods ended December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 was as follows:

  

2007

 

2006

 
Stock-based compensation expense:        
 General & administrative  $ (1,080,455) $ (1,105,253)
 Research & development   (580,740)  (1,068,126)
    
Total stock-based compensation expense   (1,661,195)  (2,173,379)
Tax effect on stock-based compensation   —  — 
    
Net effect on income  $ (1,661,195) $ (2,173,379)
    

Effect on earnings per share:        
Basic and diluted  $ (0.05) $ (0.06)
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        As of January 1, 2006, the Company had an unrecorded deferred stock-based compensation balance related to stock options of $5.4 million before estimated forfeitures. In
the Company's pro forma disclosures prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company accounted for forfeitures upon occurrence. SFAS 123R requires forfeitures to be
estimated at the time of grant and revised if necessary in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates. Accordingly, as of January 1, 2006, the Company
estimated that the stock-based compensation for the awards not expected to vest was $1.2 million, and therefore, the pro forma deferred stock-based compensation balance
related to stock options was adjusted to $4.2 million after estimated forfeitures.

        As of December 31, 2007, the pro forma deferred stock-based compensation balance related to stock options after adjusting for estimated forfeitures was $3.5 million and
will be recognized over an estimated weighted average period of 2.0 years.

        The reduction of expense in the research & development area in 2007 related to the impact of a mark to market adjustment for consultant option awards. These awards are
revalued at the end of each quarter. The significant decline in the Company's stock price in 2007 resulted in a decrease of approximately $200,000 in stock compensation
expense as compared to 2006.

        The fair value of each stock option used in the calculations under SFAS 123R is estimated using the Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model. The assumptions used in
this model include (1) the stock price at grant date, (2) the exercise price, (3) an estimated option life of four to 6.59 years, four years and four years in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, (4) no expected dividends for each period presented, (5) stock price volatility factor of 1.01%, 62.9% and 78.7% in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and (6) a
risk-free interest rate of 4.0%, 4.6% and 4.4% in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

        The Company's change in the estimated forfeiture rate in 2007 was based on personnel reductions in the fourth quarter of 2007, and resulted in a decrease of approximately
$445,000 in stock compensation expense as compared to 2006. This change in estimate was based on events which occurred or were triggered in the third quarter 2007.

        The Black-Scholes-Merton option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of short-lived exchange traded options that have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. In addition, option pricing models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including the option's expected life and the price volatility of the
underlying stock. The Company will evaluate its assumptions on a regular basis. These evaluations may result in changes to assumptions which may have a material effect on
compensation expense recorded under SFAS 123R.
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9. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

        A summary of activity related to the Company's stock options follows:

  

Shares

 

Exercise Price

Balance, December 31, 2004  3,010,509 0.63 - 44.00
 Granted  1,039,000 2.87 -  5.10
 Exercised  (60,998) 0.88 -  4.06
 Canceled  (169,341) 2.03 -  8.19
    
Balance, December 31, 2005  3,819,170 0.63 - 44.00
 Granted  1,023,650 4.48 -  6.11
 Exercised  (53,720) 0.88 -  3.86
 Canceled  (32,210) 2.30 - 20.50
    
Balance, December 31, 2006  4,756,890 0.63 - 44.00
 Granted  101,750 5.03 -  5.74
 Exercised  (35,937) 5.36 -  5.78
 Canceled  (543,743) 2.30 - 44.00
    
Balance, December 31, 2007  4,278,960 .63 - 19.38
    

        Options exercisable at December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005, were 3,356,015, 2,618,765 and 1,953,680, respectively. The weighted average exercise prices for those
options for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, were $4.69, $4.72 and $4.83, respectively.

        The intrinsic value of options exercised during 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $154,353, $178,220 and $109,644, respectively. The estimated fair value of shares vested during
2007, 2006 and 2005 was $3,099,433, $2,310,842 and $2,186,496, respectively. The weighted-average estimated fair value of stock options granted during 2007, 2006 and 2005
was $2.57, $3.09 and $2.99, respectively, based on the assumptions in the Black-Scholes-Merton valuation model discussed above.
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9. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

        The following table summarizes information about stock options outstanding at December 31, 2007:

  

Options Outstanding

      
   

 

Weighted-
Average

Remaining
Contractual

Life
(in years)

        

        

Options Exercisable

Range of Exercise Prices

 

Number of Shares
Outstanding

 

Weighted-
Average Exercise Price

 

Number of Shares
Outstanding

 

Weighted-
Average Remaining
Contractual Life (in

years)

 

Weighted-
Average

Exercise Price

$0.63 - $2.30  557,524 4.25 $ 1.70 557,524 4.25 $ 1.70
$2.30 - $3.23  520,560 6.96 $ 3.10 429,660 6.97 $ 3.10
$3.23 - $5.01  728,720 6.00 $ 4.54 695,003 5.91 $ 4.54
$5.01 - $5.08  21,000 7.91 $ 5.05 8,500 5.95 $ 5.08
$5.08 - $5.10  720,726 7.96 $ 5.10 425,476 7.96 $ 5.10
$5.10 - $6.00  592,495 5.97 $ 5.66 480,681 5.38 $ 5.73
$6.00 - $6.11  501,961 8.99 $ 6.11 125,489 9.00 $ 6.11
$6.11 - $6.75  428,133 3.10 $ 6.59 426,258 3.08 $ 6.59
$6.75 - $8.08  197,841 3.88 $ 7.86 197,424 3.87 $ 7.86
$19.38 - $19.38  10,000 .33 $ 19.38 10,000 .33 $ 19.38
             
  4,278,960 6.17 $ 4.82 3,356,015   $ 4.69
             

        At December 31, 2007, the aggregate intrinsic value of the outstanding options was $0 and the aggregate intrinsic value of the exercisable options was $0.

Stock Purchase Plan

        The Company has an employee stock purchase plan whereby employees may contribute up to 15% of their compensation to purchase shares of the Company's common
stock at 85% of the stock's fair market value at the lower of the beginning or end of each six-month offering period. Shares purchased under the plan were 46,807, 13,642 and
6,493 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. At December 31, 2007, a total of 39,551 shares remain available for purchase by employees under the plan. The previous plan
expired on December 31, 2005 and a new plan was approved by the shareholders at the 2006 annual meeting with a ten year term.

401(k) Plan

        The Company has a 401(k) plan for all employees under which it provides a specified percentage match on employee contributions. Currently, the Company match is made
in shares of the Company's common stock. Shares issued as matching contributions under the plan were 96,573, 17,191 and 18,591 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The
related expense recorded on these matching contributions was $103,697, $92,762 and $66,767 in 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. At December 31, 2007, a total of 14,714
shares remain available for future issuances as matching contributions under the plan.

Shareholder Rights Plan

        The Company has adopted a Shareholder Rights Plan ("Plan") which was amended in July 2002 and more recently in August 2006. Under the Plan, as amended, the
Company's Board of Directors
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9. Stockholders' Equity (Continued)

declared a dividend of one Preferred Stock Purchase Right ("Right") for each outstanding common share of the Company. The Rights have an exercise price of $140 per Right
and provide the holders with the right to purchase, in the event a person or group acquires 15% or more of the Company's common stock, additional shares of the Company's
common stock having a market value equal to two times the exercise price of the Right. The Rights expire in 2016.

10. Net Loss Per Share

        The following table presents the computation of basic and diluted net loss per share:

  

2007

 

2006

 

2005

 
Basic and diluted net loss per share:           
Net loss  $ (13,063,168) $ (23,551,296) $ (21,097,017)
Weighted average common shares   36,909,462  34,729,930  24,027,127 
     
 Basic and diluted net loss per share  $ (0.35) $ (0.68) $ (0.88)
     

        As of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 a total of 8,359,493, 9,237,267 and 8,373,322 options and warrants, respectively, have not been included in the calculation of
potential common shares as their effect on diluted per share amounts would have been anti-dilutive.

11. Commitments and Contingencies

        The Company has leased office space under a non-cancelable operating lease expiring in 2017 and office equipment under two non-cancelable operating leases which
expire in 2009 and 2010. Rental expense for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $784,000, $655,000 and $644,000, respectively.

        In November 2006 the Company entered into a new operating lease agreement for combined laboratory and office space. Our previous operating lease for facilities expired
December 31, 2007, and we moved into the newly leased facility in December 2007. The new lease, as amended in 2007, is for approximately 42,600 square feet and expires on
December 31, 2017, with a provision for two additional five year renewals. In connection with the new lease, we received landlord-provided incentives of approximately
$7.7 million in the form of tenant improvements, which have been recorded as additions to fixed assets and deferred rent liabilities and will be amortized over the term of the
lease. In connection with our new lease arrangement, we were required to provide a cash security deposit of approximately $497,000 of which approximately $440,000 was paid
upon lease signing in November 2006, and the remainder was paid in February 2008. In addition, the lease stipulates the Company must issue a standby letter of credit for
approximately $500,000 which is expected to be issued during the first quarter of 2008.
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        Future minimum lease payments under these leases are as follows:

2008  $ 1,929,120
2009   1,981,996
2010   1,997,220
2011   2,055,144
2012   2,116,800
Thereafter   11,575,536
  
  $ 21,655,816
  

12. Subsequent Event

        In March 2007, Bristol-Myers Squibb Pharmaceuticals recalled certain batches of Taxol due to potential lack of sterility assurance. Sonus had some of these batches at
clinical sites which were being used in the reference arm of the Phase 3 TOCOSOL Paclitaxel pivotal study. The Company has returned all of the recalled material to its
suppliers in accordance with the recall notice. On March 12, 2008, the Company received an initial refund from its suppliers of approximately $850,000 for returned material.

13. Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited)

  

Quarter Ended

 

  

Mar. 31

 

June 30

 

Sept. 30

 

Dec. 31

 

  

(in thousands, except per share data)

 
2007              
 Collaboration revenue from Bayer Schering Pharma AG  $ 5,051 $ 3,271 $ 4,079 $ 7,730 
 Operating expenses  $ 8,915 $ 9,825 $ 10,433 $ 6,193 
 Operating income (loss)  $ (3,864) $ (6,554) $ (6,354) $ 1,537 
 Net income (loss)  $ (3,225) $ (5,963) $ (5,808) $ 1,933 
 Net income (loss) per share*:              
  Basic and diluted  $ (0.09) $ (0.16) $ (0.16) $ .05 

2006              
 Collaboration revenue from Bayer Schering Pharma AG  $ 4,054 $ 7,514 $ 4,931 $ 5,893 
 Operating expenses  $ 9,879 $ 13,136 $ 12,067 $ 13,596 
 Operating loss  $ (5,825) $ (5,623) $ (7,136) $ (7,703)
 Net loss  $ (5,310) $ (4,935) $ (6,293) $ (7,013)
 Net loss per share*:              
  Basic and diluted  $ (0.17) $ (0.14) $ (0.17) $ (0.19)

* Quarterly EPS may not add to annual figure due to rounding.
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    ITEM 9.    CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 

        None.

    ITEM 9A.    CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES 

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

        Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange Act")), as of the end of the period covered by this annual report on Form 10-
K. Based on this evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of such date, our disclosure controls and procedures were
effective.

        In addition, no change in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the fourth quarter of our fiscal
year ended December 31, 2007 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

        The management of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the "Company") is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. The Company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the
Company's principal executive and principal financial officers to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of the
Company's financial statements for external reporting purposes in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

        As of December 31, 2007, management assessed the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on the framework established in
"Internal Control—Integrated Framework" issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on this evaluation, management
has determined that the Company's internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2007.

        Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

        The Company's independent registered public accountants, Ernst & Young LLP, audited the financial statements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K and have
issued an audit report on the Company's internal control over financial reporting. The report on the audit of internal control over financial reporting appears below.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

        We have audited Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.'s management is
responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in
the accompanying Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

        We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included
obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

        A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of
the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

        Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to
future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
may deteriorate.

        In our opinion, Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on the
COSO criteria.

        We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the balance sheets of Sonus
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006, and the related statements of operations, stockholders' equity, and cash flows for each of the three years
in the period ended December 31, 2007 of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and our report dated March 14, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

  /s/ Ernst & Young LLP

Seattle, Washington
March 14, 2008
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    ITEM 9B.    OTHER INFORMATION 

        Not applicable.

  
PART III 

    ITEM 10.    DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

        In compliance with Section 406 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the Nasdaq corporate governance listing standards, the Company has adopted a code of conduct
that is applicable to all of the Company's employees and directors. Interested parties may request a copy of this code of conduct, free of charge, by delivering a written request
addressed to the Chief Financial Officer, Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 1522 217th Place SE, Suite 100, Bothell, Washington 98021, or view it on the Company's website at
www.sonuspharma.com. The Company will disclose any amendments to the code of conduct and any waivers from the code of conduct for directors and executive officers by
posting such information on its website at www.sonuspharma.com.

        The information required hereunder is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days of December 31, 2007 and delivered to
stockholders in connection with our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

    ITEM 11.    EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION 

        The information required hereunder is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days of December 31, 2007 and delivered to
stockholders in connection with our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

    ITEM 12.    SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 

        The following table sets forth certain information regarding our equity compensation plans as of December 31, 2007:

  

(a)

 

(b)

 

(c)

Plan category

 

Number of securities to be issued
upon exercise of outstanding options,

warrants and rights

 

Weighted-average exercise price of
outstanding options, warrants and rights

 

Number of securities remaining available
for future issuance under equity

compensation plans (excluding securities
reflected in column (a)

Equity compensation plans approved by security holders(1)  3,854,527 $ 4.79 5,253,071
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders(2)  424,433 $ 5.04 57,581
      
Total  4,278,960    5,310,652
      

(1) Our 2000 Stock Incentive Plan was approved by security holders with 500,000 shares authorized under the plan. Stock options issued under the 2000 plan are generally
granted at the fair market value on the date of grant and expire ten years from the date of grant. The plan also has an annual feature whereby an incremental number of
shares equal to four percent of the Company's common stock outstanding as of December 31 of each year commencing December 31, 2000 are made available for
issuance under the plan up to a lifetime maximum of five million shares. This lifetime maximum was reached in 2006. In 2007, Sonus shareholders approved a new
incentive plan entitled the "2007 Performance Incentive Plan." Under the term of this plan the Company can issue up to 3,900,000 additional shares of the Company's
common stock through the grant of stock
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options and restricted stock. 5,213,520 shares were available for issuance as of December 31, 2007. The Company also had 39,551shares available at December 31, 2007
for issuance under its Employee Stock Purchase Plan. This plan expires in 2016.

(2) Our 1999 Nonqualified Stock Incentive Plan (the "1999 Plan") is a broad-based plan for which shareholder approval was not required or obtained. A total of 900,000
shares are authorized under the 1999 Plan with 57,581 available for issuance as of December 31, 2007. Options to purchase 424,433 shares of common stock under the
1999 Plan were outstanding as of December 31, 2007 at a weighted average exercise price of $5.04. Stock options issued under the 1999 Plan are generally granted with
an exercise price equal to fair market value on the date of grant, but in no event may be less than 85% of the then fair market value. Options under the 1999 Plan have
various vesting schedules and expire ten years from the date of grant. The 1999 Plan also authorizes the issuance of restricted stock, although no restricted stock grants
have been issued under the 1999 Plan. Shares underlying unexercised options that expire or are terminated become available again for future grants.

        The remaining information required hereunder is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days of December 31, 2007 and
delivered to stockholders in connection with its 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

    ITEM 13.    CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE 

        The information required hereunder is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days of December 31, 2007 and delivered to
stockholders in connection with our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

    ITEM 14.    PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES 

        The information required hereunder is incorporated by reference from our definitive Proxy Statement to be filed within 120 days of December 31, 2007 and delivered to
stockholders in connection with its 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders.

  
PART IV 

    ITEM 15.    EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES 

(a) (1)   Financial Statements

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm  31

Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006  32

Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005  33

Statements of Stockholders' Equity for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005  34

Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006, and 2005  35

Notes to the Financial Statements  36

(2) All schedules are omitted because they are not required or the required information is included in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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(3) Exhibits

Exhibit No.

 

Index to Exhibits
Description

 

Location

 
Exhibit No. 2: Plan of Acquisition    

2.1 Stock Purchase Agreement, dated November 3, 2004  (15)
2.2 Amended and Restated Stock Purchase Agreement, dated December 22, 2004.  (16)

Exhibit No. 3: Articles of Incorporation    
3.2 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company.  (1)
3.3 Certificate of Amendment of Certificate of Incorporation of the Company.  (6)
3.4 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Company.  (26)
3.5 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company.  (13)

Exhibit No. 4: Instruments Defining the Rights of Security Holders    
4.1 Specimen Certificate of Common Stock.  (1)
4.2 Rights Agreement, dated as of August 23, 1996, between the Company and U.S. Stock Transfer Corporation.  (3)
4.3 First Amendment to Rights Agreement, dated as of August 23, 1996, between the Company and U.S. Stock Transfer Corporation.  (12)
4.4 Second Amendment to Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated August 10, 2006, between the Company and U.S. Stock

Transfer Corporation, as Rights Agent.
 (20)

Exhibit No. 10: Material Contracts    
 

Compensation Plans and Arrangements    
10.1 Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock Option and Restricted Stock Purchase Plan—1991 (the "1991

Plan"), as amended.
 (1)

10.2 Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement pertaining to the 1991 Plan.  (1)
10.3 Form of Nonqualified Stock Option Agreement pertaining to the 1991 Plan.  (1)
10.4 Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement pertaining to the 1991 Plan.  (1)
10.5 Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 1995 Stock Option Plan for Directors (the "Director Plan").  (1)
10.6 Form of Stock Option Agreement pertaining to the Director Plan.  (1)
10.7 1999 Nonqualified Stock Incentive Plan (the "1999 Plan").  (6)
10.8 Form of Stock Option Agreement pertaining to the 1999 Plan.  (6)
10.9 Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement pertaining to the 1999 Plan.  (6)

10.10 2000 Stock Incentive Plan (the "2000 Plan").  (8)
10.11 Form of Stock Option Agreement pertaining to the 2000 Plan.  (8)
10.12 Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan.  (2)
10.13 Change in Control Agreement for Michael Martino, dated January 11, 2008.  (4)
10.14 Change in Control Agreement for Alan Fuhrman, dated January 11, 2008.  (4)
10.15 Amended and Restated Executive Compensation Program.  (17)
10.16 Form of Performance Award under Executive Compensation Program.  (17)
10.17 First Amendment to Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2000 Stock Incentive Plan.  (21)
10.18 Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Compensation Policy.  (22)
10.19 Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Executive Compensation Program.  (22)
10.20 Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 2007 Stock Performance Incentive Plan (the "2007 Plan").  (23)
10.21 Form of Stock Option Agreement pertaining to the 2007 Plan.  (24)
10.22 Form of Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement pertaining to the 2007 Plan.  (24)
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Other Material Contracts    
10.23 Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers and Directors of the Company.  (1)
10.24 License Agreement by and between Nycomed Amersham AS and the Company dated August 31, 1999.  (7)
10.25 License Agreement by and between Chugai Pharmaceutical Co. Ltd., Molecular Biosystems, Inc., and the Company, dated

December 22, 2000.*
 (9)

10.26 Nycomed Assignment and Asset Transfer Agreement, dated August 3, 2001.*  (10)
10.27 Supply Agreement dated January 22, 2002 between Indena SpA and Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.  (11)
10.28 First Amendment dated May 5, 2003 to Supply Agreement dated January 22, 2002 between Indena SpA and Sonus

Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
 (16)

10.29 Manufacturing and Supply Agreement by and between the Company and Gensia Sicor Pharmaceutical Sales, Inc., dated June 26,
2002.*

 (12)

10.30 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated May 7, 2004.  (14)
10.31 Registration Rights Agreement, dated May 7, 2004.  (14)
10.32 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated August 15, 2005.  (18)
10.33 Registration Rights Agreement, dated August 15, 2005.  (18)
10.34 Collaboration and License Agreement by and between the Company and Bayer Schering Pharma AG, dated October 17, 2005.*  (19)
10.35 Securities Purchase Agreement, dated October 17, 2005.  (19)
10.36 Registration Rights Agreement, dated October 17, 2005.  (19)
10.37 Lease Agreement dated November 21, 2006, between the Company and BMR-217TH Place LLC ("Lease").  (5)
10.38 Clinical Supply Agreement between the Company and Bayer Schering Pharma AG, dated June 1, 2006  (5)
10.39 Placement Agency Agreement, dated April 27, 2006, by and among the Company, Needham & Company, LLC, Ziegel & Company,

L.P. and ThinkEquity Partners LLC.
 (25)

10.40 Form of Purchase Agreement between the Company and each of certain investors.  (25)
10.41 First Amendment to Lease, dated August 17, 2007.  (26)

Exhibit No. 23: Consents of Experts and Counsel    
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.  (26)
24.1 Power of Attorney (included on the Signature Page of this Annual Report on Form 10-K).  (26)

Certifications    
31.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).  (26)
31.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).  (26)
32.1 Certification of President and Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b).  (26)
32.2 Certification of the Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or 15d-14(b).  (26)

(1) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 33-96112.
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(2) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-1, Reg. No. 33-80623. 

(3) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form 8-A, dated August 23, 1996. 

(4) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 17, 2008. 

(5) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2006. 

(6) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 1999 (File No. 000-21243; Film No. 99618950). 

(7) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed October 14, 1999 (File No. 000-21243; Film No. 99728284). 

(8) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000 (File No. 000-21243; Film No. 698483). 

(9) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-KA for the period ended December 31, 2000 (File No. 000-21243; Film No. 1562780). 

(10) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2001 (File No. 000-21243; Film
No. 1783325). 

(11) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Registration Statement on Form S-3 filed February 8, 2002. 

(12) Incorporated by reference to the Company's filing on Form 8-A12G/A dated July 25, 2002. 

(13) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004. 

(14) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 13, 2004. 

(15) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed September 20, 2004. 

(16) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 8, 2004. 

(17) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed January 4, 2005. 

(18) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed August 17, 2005. 

(19) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 2005. 

(20) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K-A/A filed August 10, 2006. 

(21) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2006. 

(22) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 15, 2006. 

(23) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Definitive Proxy Statement on Schedule 14A, filed April 3, 2007. 

(24) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2007.
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(25) Incorporated by reference to the Company's Current Report on Form 8-K, filed May 1, 2006. 

(26) Filed herewith. 

* Portions of this exhibit are omitted and were filed separately with the Secretary of the Commission pursuant to the Registrant's application requesting confidential
treatment under Rule 24b-2 of the Exchange Act of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.
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SIGNATURES 

        Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned thereunto duly authorized, in the City of Bothell, State of Washington, on March 14, 2008.

  SONUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.

Dated: March 14, 2008  By: /s/  MICHAEL A. MARTINO      

Michael A. Martino
President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer)

        We, the undersigned directors and officers of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., do hereby constitute and appoint Michael A. Martino and Alan Fuhrman, or either of them, our
true and lawful attorneys and agents, with full powers of substitution to do any and all acts and things in our name and on behalf in our capacities as directors and officers and to
execute any and all instruments for us and in our names in the capacities indicated below, which said attorneys and agents may deem necessary or advisable to enable said
corporation to comply with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and any rules, regulations and requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, in
connection with this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including specifically but without limitation, power and authority to sign for us or any of us in our names in the capacities
indicated below, any and all amendments thereto; and we do hereby ratify and confirm all that said attorneys and agents, shall do or cause to be done by virtue hereof.

        Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the
capacities and on the dates indicated.

     
/s/  MICHAEL A. MARTINO      

Michael A. Martino

 President, Chief Executive Officer and Director (Principal Executive
Officer)

 March 14, 2008

/s/  ALAN FUHRMAN      

Alan Fuhrman

 Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)
(Principal Accounting Officer)

 March 14, 2008

/s/  MICHELLE BURRIS      

Michelle Burris

 Director  March 14, 2008

/s/  GEORGE W. DUNBAR, JR.      

George W. Dunbar, Jr.

 Director  March 14, 2008

/s/  ROBERT E. IVY      

Robert E. Ivy

 Director, Chairman of the Board of Directors  March 14, 2008

/s/  DWIGHT WINSTEAD      

Dwight Winstead

 Director  March 14, 2008
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Exhibit 3.4
 

SECOND AMENDED AND RESTATED
 

BY-LAWS
 

OF
 

SONUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.
 

Section 1.              Law, Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws
 
1.1.          These by-laws are subject to the certificate of incorporation of the corporation.  In these by-laws, references to law, the certificate of incorporation and by-

laws mean the law, the provisions of the certificate of incorporation and the by-laws as from time to time in effect.
 
Section 2.              Stockholders
 
2.1.          Annual Meeting.  The annual meeting of stockholders shall be held at 10:00 a.m. on the second Tuesday in May in each year, unless that day be a legal

holiday at the place where the meeting is to be held, in which case the meeting shall be held at the same hour on the next succeeding day not a legal holiday, or at such other
date and time as shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors and stated in the notice of the meeting, at which they shall elect a board of directors and
transact such other business as may be required by law or these by-laws or as may properly come before the meeting.

 
2.2.          Special Meetings.  A special meeting of the stockholders may be called at any time by the chairman of the board, if any, the president or the board of

directors.  A special meeting of the stockholders shall be called by the secretary, or in the case of the death, absence, incapacity or refusal of the secretary, by an assistant
secretary or some other officer, upon application of a majority of the directors.  Any such application shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting.  Any such
call shall state the place, date, hour, and purposes of the meeting.

 
2.3.          Place of Meeting.  All meetings of the stockholders for the election of directors or for any other purpose shall be held at such place within or without the

State of Delaware as may be determined from time to time by the chairman of the board, if any, the president or the board of directors.  Any adjourned session of any meeting
of the stockholders shall be held at the place designated in the vote of adjournment.

 
2.4.          Notice of Meetings.  Except as otherwise provided by law, a written notice of each meeting of stockholders stating the place, day and hour thereof and, in

the case of a special meeting, the purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given not less than ten nor more than sixty days before the meeting, to each stockholder
entitled to vote thereat, and to each stockholder who, by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, is entitled to notice, by leaving such notice with him or at
his residence or usual place of business, or by depositing it in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to such stockholder at his address as it appears in the
records of the corporation.  Such notice shall be given by the secretary, or by an officer or person designated by the board of directors, or in the case of a special meeting by
the officer calling the meeting.  As to any adjourned session of any meeting of stockholders, notice of the adjourned meeting need not be given if the time and place thereof
are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment was taken except that if the adjournment is for more than thirty days or if after the adjournment a new record

 

 
date is set for the adjourned session, notice of any such adjourned session of the meeting shall be given in the manner heretofore described.  No notice of any meeting of
stockholders or any adjourned session thereof need be given to a stockholder if a written waiver of notice, executed before or after the meeting or such adjourned session by
such stockholder, is filed with the records of the meeting or if the stockholder attends such meeting without objecting at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of any
business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.  Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any meeting of the stockholders or any adjourned
session thereof need be specified in any written waiver of notice.

 
2.5.          Quorum of Stockholders.  At any meeting of the stockholders a quorum as to any matter shall consist of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast on the

matter, except where a larger quorum is required by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws.  Any meeting may be adjourned from time to time by a
majority of the votes properly cast upon the question, whether or not a quorum is present.  If a quorum is present at an original meeting, a quorum need not be present at an
adjourned session of that meeting.  Shares of its own stock belonging to the corporation or to another corporation, if a majority of the shares entitled to vote in the election of
directors of such other corporation is held, directly or indirectly, by the corporation, shall neither be entitled to vote nor be counted for quorum purposes; provided, however,
that the foregoing shall not limit the right of any corporation to vote stock, including but not limited to its own stock, held by it in a fiduciary capacity.

 
2.6.          Action by Vote.  When a quorum is present at any meeting, a plurality of the votes properly cast for election to any office shall elect to such office and a

majority of the votes properly cast upon any question other than an election to an office shall decide the question, except when a larger vote is required by law, by the
certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws.  No ballot shall be required for any election unless requested by a stockholder present or represented at the meeting and
entitled to vote in the election.

 
2.7.          Action without Meetings.  Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, any action required or permitted to be taken by stockholders for or

in connection with any corporate action may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so
taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a
meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted and shall be delivered to the corporation by delivery to its registered office in Delaware by hand or
certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to its principal place of business or to an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which
proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded.  Each such written consent shall bear the date of signature of each stockholder who signs the consent.  No written
consent shall be effective to take the corporate action referred to therein unless written consents signed by a number of stockholders sufficient to take such action are delivered
to the corporation in the manner specified in this paragraph within sixty days of the earliest dated consent so delivered.

 
If action is taken by consent of stockholders and in accordance with the foregoing, there shall be filed with the records of the meetings of stockholders the writing or

writings comprising such consent.
 
If action is taken by less than unanimous consent of stockholders, prompt notice of the taking of such action without a meeting shall be given to those who have not

consented in writing and a
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certificate signed and attested to by the secretary that such notice was given shall be filed with the records of the meetings of stockholders.

 
In the event that the action which is consented to is such as would have required the filing of a certificate under any provision of the General Corporation Law of the



State of Delaware, if such action had been voted upon by the stockholders at a meeting thereof, the certificate filed under such provision shall state, in lieu of any statement
required by such provision concerning a vote of stockholders, that written consent has been given under Section 228 of said General Corporation Law and that written notice
has been given as provided in such Section 228.

 
2.8.          Proxy Representation.  Every stockholder may authorize another person or persons to act for him by proxy in all matters in which a stockholder is entitled to

participate, whether by waiving notice of any meeting, objecting to or voting or participating at a meeting, or expressing consent or dissent without a meeting.  Every proxy
must be signed by the stockholder or by his attorney-in-fact.  No proxy shall be voted or acted upon after three years from its date unless such proxy provides for a longer
period.  A duly executed proxy shall be irrevocable if it states that it is irrevocable and, if, and only as long as, it is coupled with an interest sufficient in law to support an
irrevocable power.  A proxy may be made irrevocable regardless of whether the interest with which it is coupled is an interest in the stock itself or an interest in the
corporation generally.  The authorization of a proxy may but need not be limited to specified action, provided, however, that if a proxy limits its authorization to a meeting or
meetings of stockholders, unless otherwise specifically provided such proxy shall entitle the holder thereof to vote at any adjourned session but shall not be valid after the
final adjournment thereof.

 
2.9.          Inspectors.  The directors or the person presiding at the meeting may, but need not, appoint one or more inspectors of election and any substitute inspectors

to act at the meeting or any adjournment thereof.  Each inspector, before entering upon the discharge of his duties, shall take and sign an oath faithfully to execute the duties
of inspector at such meeting with strict impartiality and according to the best of his ability.  The inspectors, if any, shall determine the number of shares of stock outstanding
and the voting power of each, the shares of stock represented at the meeting, the existence of a quorum, the validity and effect of proxies, and shall receive votes, ballots or
consents, hear and determine all challenges and questions arising in connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all votes, ballots or consents, determine the result, and
do such acts as are proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness to all stockholders.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a stockholder seeks to nominate
one or more directors pursuant to Section 3.3 of these by-laws, the directors shall appoint two inspectors, who shall not be affiliated with the Corporation, to determine
whether a stockholder has complied with Section 3.3 of these by-laws.  If the inspector shall determine that a stockholder has not complied with Section 3.3 of these by-laws,
the inspectors shall direct the person presiding over the meeting to declare to the meeting that a nomination was not made in accordance with the procedures prescribed by the
by-laws; and the person presiding over the meeting shall so declare to the meeting and the defective nomination shall be disregarded.  On request of the person presiding at the
meeting, the inspectors shall make a report in writing of any challenge, question or matter determined by them and execute a certificate of any fact found by them.

 
2.10.        List of Stockholders.  The secretary shall prepare and make, at least ten days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders

entitled to vote at such meeting, arranged in alphabetical order and showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in his name.  The stock ledger
shall be the only evidence as to who are stockholders entitled to examine such list or to vote in person or by proxy at such meeting.
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Section 3.              Board of Directors
 
3.1.          Number.  The number of directors which shall constitute the whole board shall not be less than three (3) nor more than seven (7) in number.  The exact

number of directors shall be fixed from time to time by a resolution adopted by a majority of directors.  Until otherwise fixed by the directors, the number of directors
constituting the entire board of directors shall be five (5).  Within the foregoing limits, the number of directors may be increased at any time or from time to time by the
stockholders or by the directors by vote of a majority of the directors then in office.  The number of directors may be decreased to any number permitted by the foregoing at
any time either by the stockholders or by the directors by vote of a majority of the directors then in office, but only to eliminate vacancies existing by reason of the death,
resignation or removal of one or more directors.  Directors need not be stockholders.

 
3.2.          Tenure.  Except as otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, each director shall hold office until the successors of

such director’s class are elected and qualified, or until he sooner dies, resigns, is removed or becomes disqualified.
 
3.3.          Nomination.  Only persons who are nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 3.3 shall be eligible for election as directors. 

Nominations of persons for election to the board of directors may be made by or at the direction of the board of directors or by any stockholder of the corporation entitled to
vote for the election of directors at the meeting who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this Section 3.3.  Such nominations, other than those made by or at the
discretion of the board of directors, shall be made pursuant to timely notice in writing to the Secretary.  To be timely, a stockholder’s notice shall be delivered to or mailed
and received at the principal executive offices of the corporation not less than 45 days nor more than 90 days prior to the meeting; provided, however, that in the event that
less than 55 days’ notice or prior public disclosure of the date of the meeting is given or made to stockholders, notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so received not
later than the close of business on the 10th day following the date on which such notice of the date of the meeting was mailed or such public disclosure was made.  Such
stockholder’s notice shall set forth (A) as to each person whom the stockholder proposes to nominate for election or reelection as a director, (i) the name, age, business
address and residence address of such person, (ii) the principal occupation or employment of such person, (iii) the class and number of shares of the capital stock of the
corporation which are beneficially owned by such person and (iv) any other information relating to such person that would be required to be disclosed in solicitations of
proxies for election of directors, or would be otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
amended (including without limitation such person’s written consent to being named in the proxy statement as a without limitation such person’s written consent to being
named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected); and (B) as to the stockholder giving the notice (i) the name and address of such stockholder
and (ii) the class and number of shares of the capital stock of the corporation which are beneficially owned (as defined by Rule 13d-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as amended) by such stockholder.  If requested in writing by the Secretary at least 15 days in advance of the annual meeting, a stockholder whose shares are not registered in
the name of such stockholder on the corporation’s books shall provide the Secretary, within ten days of such request, with documentary support for such claim of beneficial
ownership.  At the request of the board of directors, any person nominated by the board of directors for election as a director shall furnish to the Secretary that information
required to be set forth in a stockholder’s notice of nomination which pertains to the nominee.
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3.4.          Powers.  The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the board of directors who shall have and may exercise

all the powers of the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by law, the certificate of incorporation or these by-laws directed or required to be exercised
or done by the stockholders.

 
3.5.          Vacancies.  Vacancies and any newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors may be filled by vote of the stockholders

at a meeting called for the purpose, or by a majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director.  When one or more directors
shall resign from the board, effective at a future date, a majority of the directors then in office, including those who have resigned, shall have power to fill such vacancy or
vacancies, the vote or action by writing thereon to take effect when such resignation or resignations shall become effective.  The directors shall have and may exercise all their
powers notwithstanding the existence of one or more vacancies in their number, subject to any requirements of law or of the certificate of incorporation or of these by-laws as
to the number of directors required for a quorum or for any vote or other actions.

 
3.6.          Committees.  The board of directors may, by vote of a majority of the whole board, (a) designate, change the membership of or terminate the existence of

any committee or committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the directors; (b) designated one or more directors as alternate members of any such committee
who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee; and (c) determine the extent to which each such committee shall have and may exercise
the powers of the board of directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, including the power to authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed
to all papers which require it and the power and authority to declare dividends or to authorize the issuance of stock; excepting, however, such powers which by law, by the



certificate of incorporation or by these or by these by-laws they are prohibited from so delegating.  In the absence or disqualification of any member of such committee and
his alternate, if any, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not constituting a quorum, may unanimously appoint
another member of the board of directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member.  Except as the board of directors may otherwise
determine, any committee may make rules for the conduct of its business, but unless otherwise provided by the board or such rules, its business shall be conducted as nearly
as may be in the same manner as is provided by these by-laws for the conduct of business by the board of directors.  Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its meetings
and report the same to the board of directors upon request.

 
3.7.          Regular Meetings.  Regular meetings of the board of directors may be held without call or notice at such places within or without the State of Delaware and

at such times as the board may from time to time determine, provided that notice of the first regular meeting following any such determination shall be given to absent
directors.  A regular meeting of the directors may be held without call or notice immediately after and at the same place as the annual meeting of the stockholders.

 
3.8.          Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the board of directors may be held at any time and at any place within or without the State of Delaware designated

in the notice of the meting, when called by the chairman of the board, if any, the president, or by one-third or more in number of the directors, reasonable notice thereof being
given to each director by the secretary or by the chairman of the board, if any, the president or any one of the directors calling the meeting.
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3.9.          Notice.  It shall be reasonable and sufficient notice to a director to send notice by mail at least forty-eight hours or by telegram or facsimile at least twenty-

four hours before the meeting addressed to him at his usual or last known business or residence address or to give notice to him in person or by telephone at least twenty-four
hours before the meeting.  Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director if a written waiver of notice, executed by him before or after the meeting, is filed with the
records of the meeting, or to any director who attends the meeting without protesting prior thereto or at its commencement the lack of notice to him.  Neither notice of a
meeting nor a wavier of a notice need specify the purposes of the meeting.

 
3.10.        Quorum.  Except as may be otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or these by-laws, at any meeting of the directors a majority of the

directors then in office shall constitute a quorum; a quorum shall not in any case be less than one-third of the total number of directors constituting the whole board.  Any
meeting may be adjourned from time to time by a majority of the votes cast upon the question, whether or not a quorum is present, and the meeting may be held as adjourned
without further notice.

 
3.11.        Action by Vote.  Except as may be otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, when a quorum is present at any

meeting the vote of a majority of the directors present shall be the act of the board of directors.
 
3.12.        Action Without a Meeting.  Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the board of directors or a committee thereof may be taken

without a meeting if all the members of the board or of such committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and such writing or writings are filed with the records
of the meetings of the board or of such committee.  Such consent shall be treated for all purposes as the act of the board or of such committee, as the case may be.

 
3.13.        Participation in Meetings by Conference Telephone.  Members of the board of directors, or any committee designated by such board, may participate in a

meeting of such board or committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meting can
hear each other or by any other means permitted by law.  Such participation shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.

 
3.14.        Compensation.  In the discretion of the board of directors, each director may be paid such fees for his services as director and be reimbursed from his

reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of his duties as director as the board of directors from time to time may determine.  Nothing contained in this section shall be
construed to preclude any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving reasonable compensation therefor.

 
3.15.        Interested Directors and Officers.
 

(a)          No contract or transaction between the corporation and one or more of its directors or officers, or between the corporation and any other
corporation, partnership, association, or other organization in which one or more of the corporation’s directors or officers are directors or officers, or have a financial interest,
shall be void or voidable, solely for this reason, or solely because the director officer is present at or participates in the meeting of the board or committee thereof which
authorizes the contract or transaction, or solely because his or their votes are counted for such purpose, if:
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(1)          The material facts as to his relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the board of directors

or the committee, and the board or committee in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative votes of majority of the disinterested directors, even
though the disinterested directors be less than a quorum: or

 
(2)          The material facts as to his relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the stockholder

entitled to vote thereon, and the contract or transaction is specifically approved in good faith by vote of the stockholders; or
 
(3)          The contract or transaction is fair as to the corporation as of the time it is authorized, approved or ratified by the board of directors, a

committee thereof, or the stockholders.
 

(b)          Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the board of directors or of a committee
which authorized the contract or transaction.

 
Section 4.              Officers and Agents.
 
4.1.          Enumeration:  Qualification.  The officers of the corporation shall be a president, a treasurer, a secretary and such other officers, if any, as the board of

directors from time to time may in its discretion elect or appoint including without limitation a chairman of the board, one or more vice presidents and a controller.  The
corporation may also have such agents, if any, as the board of directors from time to time may in its discretion choose.  Any officer may be but none need be a director or
stockholder.  Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.  Any officer may be required by the board of directors to secure the faithful performance of his duties
to the corporation by giving bond in such amount and with sureties or otherwise as the board of directors may determine.

 
4.2.          Powers.  Subject to law, to the certificate of incorporation and to the other provisions of these by-laws, each officer shall have, in addition to the duties and

powers herein set forth, such duties and powers as are commonly incident to his office and such additional duties and powers as the board of directors may from time to time
designate.

 
4.3.          Election.  The officers may be elected by the board of directors at their first meeting following the annual meeting of the stockholders or at any other time. 

At any time or from time to time the directors may delegate to any officer their power to elect or appoint any other officer or any agents.
 



4.4.          Tenure.  Each officer shall hold office until the first meeting of the board of directors following the next annual meeting of the stockholders and until his
respective successor is chosen and qualified unless a shorter period shall have been specified by the terms of his election or appointment, or in each case until he sooner dies,
resigns, is removed or becomes disqualified.  Each agent shall retain his authority at the pleasure of the directors, or the officer by whom he was appointed or by the officer
who then holds agent appointive power.

 
4.5.          Chairman of the board of directors, President and Vice President.  The chairman of the board, if any, shall have such duties and powers as shall be

designated from time to time by the
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board of directors.  Unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, the chairman of the board, or if there is none the chief executive officer, shall preside, or designate the
person who shall preside, at all meetings of the stockholders and of the board of directors.

 
Unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, the president shall be the chief executive officer and shall have direct charge of all business operations of the

corporation and, subject to the control of the directors, shall have general charge and supervision of the business of the corporation.
 
Any vice president shall have such duties and powers as shall be set forth in these by-laws or as shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors or by

the president.
 
4.6.          Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Treasurers.  Unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, the chief financial officer shall be the treasurer of the

corporation and shall be in charge of its funds and valuable papers, and shall have such other duties and powers as may be designated from time to time by the board of
directors or by the president.  If no controller is elected, the chief financial officer shall, unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, also have the duties and powers of
the controller.

 
Any assistant treasurers shall have such duties and powers as shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors, the president or the chief financial

officer.
 
4.7.          Controller and Assistant Controller.  If a controller is elected, he shall, unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, be the chief accounting officer of

the corporation and be in charge of its books of account and accounting records, and of its accounting procedures.  He shall have such other duties and powers and may be
designated from time to time by the board of directors, the president or the treasurer.

 
Any assistant controller shall have such duties and powers as shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors, the president, the treasurer or the

controller.
 
4.8.          Secretary to the Assistant Secretaries.  The secretary shall record all proceedings of the stockholders, of the board of directors and of committees of the

board of directors in a book or series of books to be kept therefore and shall file therein all actions by written consent of stockholders or directors.  In the absence of the
secretary from any meeting, an assistant secretary, or if there be none or he is absent, a temporary secretary chosen at the meeting, shall record the proceedings thereof. 
Unless a transfer agent has been appointed the secretary shall keep or cause to be kept the stock and transfer records of the corporation, which shall contain the names and
record addresses of all stockholders and the number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder.  He shall have such other duties and powers as may from time to time
be designated by the board of directors or the president.

 
Any assistant secretaries shall have such duties and powers as shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors, the president or the secretary.
 
Section 5.              Resignations and Removals.
 
5.1.          Any director or officer may resign at any time by delivering his resignation in writing to the chairman of the board, if any, the president, or the secretary or

to a meeting of the board of directors.  Such resignation shall be effective upon receipt unless specified to be effective at some
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other time, and without in either case the necessity of its being accepted unless the resignation shall so state.  A director (including persons elected by directors to fill
vacancies in the board) may be removed from office with or without cause by the vote of the holders of a majority of the shares issued and outstanding and entitled to vote in
the election of directors.  The board of directors may at any time remove any officer either with or without cause.  The board of directors may at any time terminate or modify
the authority of any agent.  No director of officer resigning and (except where a right to receive compensation shall be expressly provided in a duly authorized written
agreement with the corporation) no director or officer removed shall have any right to any compensation as such director or officer for any period following his resignation or
removal, or any right to damages on account of such removal, whether his compensation be by the month or by the year or otherwise; unless, in the case of a resignation, the
directors, or, in the case of removal, the body acting on the removal, shall in their or its discretion provide for compensation.

 
Section 6.              Vacancies.
 
6.1.          If the office of the president or the treasurer or the secretary becomes vacant, the directors may elect a successor by vote of a majority of the directors then

in office.  If the office of any other officer becomes vacant, any person or body empowered to elect or appoint that officer may choose a successor.  Each such successor shall
hold office for the unexpired term, and in the case of the president, the treasurer and the secretary until his successor is chosen and qualified or in each case he sooner dies,
resigns, is removed or becomes disqualified.  Any vacancy of a directorship shall be filled as specified in Section 3.5 of these by-laws.

 
Section 7.              Capital Stock.
 
7.1.          Stock Certificates.  The shares of the corporation shall be represented by certificates, provided that the board of directors of the corporation may provide by

resolution or resolutions that some or all of any or all classes or series of its stock shall be uncertificated shares.  Any such resolution shall not apply to shares represented by a
certificate until such certificate is surrendered to the corporation.  Notwithstanding the adoption of such a resolution by the board of directors, every holder of stock
represented by certificates and upon request every holder of uncertificated shares shall be entitled to have a certificate signed by, or in the name of the corporation by the
chairman or vice-chairman of the board of directors, if any, or the president or vice-president, and by the treasurer or an assistant treasurer, or by the secretary or an assistant
secretary of such corporation representing the number of shares registered in certificate form.  Any or all of the signatures on the certificate may be a facsimile.  In case any
officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate has ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar
before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the corporation with the same effect as if he were such officer, transfer agent, or registrar at the time of issue.

 
7.2.          Loss of Certificates.  In the case of the alleged theft, loss, destruction or mutilation of a certificate of stock, a duplicate certificate may be issued in place

thereof, upon such terms, including receipt of a bond sufficient to indemnify the corporation against any claim on account thereof, as the board of directors may prescribe.
 
Section 8.              Transfer of Shares of Stock.



 
8.1.          Transfer on Books.  Subject to the restrictions, if any, stated or noted on the stock certificate, shares of stock may be transferred on the books of the

corporation by the surrender to the
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corporation or its transfer agent of the certificate therefor properly endorsed or accompanied by a written assignment and power of attorney properly executed, with necessary
transfer stamps affixed, and with such proof of the authenticity of signature as the board of directors or the transfer agent of the corporation may reasonably require.  Except as
may be otherwise required by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, the corporation shall be entitled to treat the record holder of stock as shown on its
books as the owner of such stock for all purposes, including the payment of dividends and the right to receive notice and to vote or to give any consent with respect thereto
and to be held liable for such calls and assessments, if any, as may lawfully be made thereon, regardless of any transfer, pledge or other disposition of such stock until the
shares have been properly transferred on the books of the corporation.

 
It shall be the duty of each stockholder to notify the corporation of his post office address.
 
8.2.          Record Date and Closing Transfer Books.  In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of

stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the board of directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record
date is adopted by the board of directors, and which record date shall not be more than sixty nor less than ten days before the date of such meeting.  If no such record date is
fixed by the board of directors, the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on
the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held.  A
determination of stockholders or record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the
board of directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

 
In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, the board of directors may fix a

record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the board of directors, and which date shall not be
more than ten days after the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the board of directors.  If no such record date has been fixed by the board of
directors, the record date for determining stockholders entitled to consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting, when no prior action by the board of directors is
required by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, shall be the first date on which a signed written consent setting forth the action taken or proposed to be
taken is delivered to the corporation by delivery to its registered office in Delaware by hand or certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to its principal place of
business or to an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded.  If no record date has been
fixed by the board of directors and prior action by the board of directors is required by the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, the record date for determining
stockholders entitled to consent to corporate action in writing without a meeting shall be at the close of business on the day on which the board of directors adopts the
resolution taking such prior action.

 
In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to receive payment of any dividend or other distribution or allotment of any rights or to exercise

any rights in respect of any change, conversion or exchange of stock, or for the purpose of any other lawful action, the board of directors may fix a record date, which record
date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted, and which record date shall be not more than sixty days prior to such payment,
exercise or other action.  If no such record date is fixed, the record date for
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determining stockholders for any such purpose shall be at the close of business on the day on which the board of directors adopts the resolution relating thereto.

 
Section 9.              Indemnification.
 
9.1.          Right to Indemnification.  Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any action, suit or

proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (hereinafter a “proceeding”), by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director officer of the
corporation or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director or officer of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
including service with respect to employee benefit plans (hereinafter an “indemnitee”), whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action in an official capacity as a
director or officer or in any other capacity while serving as a director or officer, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the corporation to the fullest extent authorized by
the Delaware General Corporation Law, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment
permits the corporation to provide broader indemnification rights than such law permitted the corporation to provide prior to such amendment), against all expense, liability
and loss (including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such indemnitee in
connection therewith and such indemnification shall continue as to an indemnitee who has ceased to be a director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the indemnitee’s
heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that, except as provided in this Section 9.1 with respect to proceedings to enforce rights to indemnification, the
corporation shall indemnify any such indemnitee in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such indemnitee only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was
authorized by the board of directors of the corporation.  The right to indemnification conferred in this Section 9.1 shall be a contract right and shall include the right to be paid
by the corporation the expenses incurred in defending any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition (hereinafter an “advancement of expenses”); provided, however,
that, if the Delaware General Corporation Law requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by an indemnitee in his or her capacity as a director or officer (and not in any
other capacity in which service was or is rendered by such indemnitee, including without limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) shall be made only upon delivery to
the corporation of an undertaking, by or on behalf of such indemnitee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from
which there is not further right to appeal that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under this Section 9 or otherwise (hereinafter an
“undertaking”).

 
9.2.          Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit.  If a claim under Section 9.1 of these by-laws is not paid in full by the corporation within forty-five (45) days after a

written claim has been received by the corporation, the indemnitee may at any time thereafter bring suit against the corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim.  If
successful in whole or part in any such suit or in a suit brought by the corporation to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the
indemnitee shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting or defending such suit.  In (i) any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification
hereunder (but not in a suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to an advancement of expenses) it shall be a defense that, and (ii) any suit by the corporation to
recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking the corporation shall be entitled to recover such expenses upon a final adjudication that, the
indemmitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the Delaware General Corporation Law.  Neither the failure of the corporation (including its board of
directors, independent legal counsel, or its stockholders) to have made a determination prior
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to the commencement of such suit that indemnification of the indemnitee is proper in the circumstances because the indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct set
forth in the Delaware General Corporation Law, nor an actual determination by the corporation (including its board of directors, independent legal counsel, or its



stockholders) that the indemnitee has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall create a presumption that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of
conduct or, in the case of such a suit brought by indemnitee, be a defense to such suit.  In any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right hereunder, or by the corporation
to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the burden of proving that the indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified or to such
advancement of expenses under this Section 9 or otherwise shall be on the corporation.

 
9.3.          Non-Exclusivity of Rights.  The rights of indemnification and to the advancement of expenses conferred in this Section 9 shall not be exclusive of any other

right which any person may have or thereafter acquire under any statue, provision of the Certificate of Incorporation, by-law agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested
directors or otherwise and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs and legal representatives of such person.

 
9.4.          Insurance.  The corporation may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or

another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not the corporation would have the power to
indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the Delaware General Corporation Law.

 
9.5.          Indemnification of Employees or Agents of the Corporation.  The corporation may, to the extent authorized from time to time by the board of directors,

grant rights to indemnification and to the advancement of expenses, to any employee or agent of the corporation to the fullest extent of the provisions of this Section 9 with
respect to the indemnification and advancement of expenses of directors or officers of the corporation.

 
9.6.          Indemnification Contracts.  The board of directors is authorized to enter into a contract with any director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or

any person serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise,
including employee benefit plans, providing for indemnification rights equivalent to or, if the board of directors so determines, greater than, those provided for in this
Section 9.

 
9.7.          Effect of Amendment.  Any amendment, repeal or modification of any provision of this Section 9 by the stockholders or the directors of the corporation

shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director or officer of the corporation existing at the time of such amendment, repeal or modification.
 
Section 10.            Corporate Seal.
 
10.1.        Subject to alteration by the directors, the seal of the corporation shall consist of a flat-faced circular die with the word “Delaware” and the name of the

corporation cut or engraved thereon, together with such other words, dates or images as may be approved from time to time by the directors.
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Section 11.            Execution of Papers.
 
11.1.        Except as the board of directors may generally or in particular cases authorize the execution thereof in some other manner, all deeds, leases, transfers,

contracts, bonds, notes, checks, drafts or other obligations made, accepted or endorsed by the corporation shall be signed by the chairman of the board, if any, the president, a
vice president or the treasurer.

 
Section 12.            Fiscal Year.
 
12.1.        The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.
 
Section 13.            Amendments.
 
13.1.        These by-laws may be adopted, amended or repealed by vote of a majority of the directors then in office or by vote of a majority of the stock outstanding

and entitled to vote.  Any by-law, whether adopted, amended or repealed by the stockholders or directors, may be amended or reinstated by the stockholders or the directors.
 

13



Exhibit 10.41
 

FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE
 

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO LEASE (this “Amendment”) is entered into as of this 17th day of August, 2007, by and between BMR-217TH PLACE LLC, a
Delaware limited liability company (“Landlord”), and SONUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC. (“Tenant”).

 
RECITALS

 
A.            WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into that certain Lease dated as of November 21, 2006 (the “Lease”), whereby Tenant leases certain premises

(the “Premises”) from Landlord at 1522 217th Place SE in Bothell, Washington (the “Building”);
 
B.            WHEREAS, Tenant desires to increase the size of the Premises and Tranche 3; and
 
C.            WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to modify and amend the Lease only in the respects and on the conditions hereinafter stated.
 

AGREEMENT
 

NOW, THEREFORE, Landlord and Tenant, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and
sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, and intending to be legally bound, agree as follows:

 
1.             Definitions.  For purposes of this Amendment, capitalized terms shall have the meanings ascribed to them in the Lease unless otherwise defined herein. 

The Lease, as amended by this Amendment, shall be referred to herein as the “Amended Lease.”
 
2.             Premises.  The attached Exhibit A replaces and supersedes in its entirety Exhibit A attached to the Lease.
 
3.             Rentable Area of Building and Premises.  Landlord and Tenant acknowledge that, pursuant to the current Approved Plans, the Rentable Area of the

(a) Building is sixty-seven thousand seven hundred ninety-nine (67,799) square feet and (b) Premises is forty-two thousand six hundred twenty-eight (42,628) square feet, in
each case subject to further adjustment in accordance with the Lease.  Section 2.2 of the Lease is hereby replaced in its entirety with the following:

 
In the definitions below, each Rentable Area (as defined below) is expressed in rentable square footage.  Rentable Area and Tenant’s Pro Rata Share are all subject to
adjustment as provided in this Lease.

 

 

Definition or Provision
 

Means the Following (As of the
Term Commencement Date)

Rentable Area of Premises 42,628 square feet
Rentable Area of Building 67,799 square feet

Tenant’s Pro Rata Share of Building 62.87%
 
4.             Increase in Tranche 3.  Section 5.2 of the Lease is hereby replaced in its entirety with the following:
 
Landlord shall cause to be constructed the tenant improvements in the Premises (the “Tenant Improvements”) pursuant to the Work Letter at a cost to Landlord (the
“Tenant Improvement Allowance”) not to exceed Seven Million Six Hundred Seventy-Three Thousand Forty Dollars ($7,673,040) (based upon One Hundred Eighty
Dollars ($180) per rentable square foot, as adjusted based on the finally determined Rentable Area of the Premises), which amount shall include the costs of
(a) construction, (b) project management by Landlord (which fee shall equal three percent (3%) of the Tenant Improvement Allowance actually paid by Landlord but
not less than 3% of the product of the Rentable Area of the Premises times One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars ($125) per rentable square foot), (c) space planning,
architect, engineering and other related services and (d) building permits and other planning and inspection fees.  The Tenant Improvement Allowance shall consist of
an allowance of (x) One Hundred Twenty-Five Dollars ($125) per rentable square foot, which shall be expended first, (y) an additional Twenty-Five Dollars ($25) per
rentable square foot, which shall be expended second (“Tranche 2”), and (z) an additional Thirty Dollars ($30) per rentable square foot, which shall be expended third
(“Tranche 3”).  If the total cost of the Tenant Improvements exceeds the Tenant Improvement Allowance, then the overage shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord prior to
the Term Commencement Date.  Tenant shall have until December 31, 2007, to expend the unused portion of the Tenant Improvement Allowance, after which date
Landlord’s obligation to fund such costs shall expire.  Tenant shall pay to Landlord, as Additional Rent (the “TI Rent”), Tranche 2 or so much thereof as is actually
paid by Landlord amortized over the final one hundred twenty (120) months of the initial Term at a rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, and Tranche 3 or so much
thereof as is actually paid by Landlord amortized over the final one hundred twenty (120) months of the initial Term at a rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum.
 
5.             Broker.  Tenant represents and warrants that it has not dealt with any broker or agent in the negotiation for or the obtaining of this Amendment other than

Landlord’s Broker and Tenant’s Broker, and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Landlord harmless from any and all cost or liability for compensation claimed by any other
broker or agent employed or engaged by it or claiming to have been employed or engaged by it.  Landlord represents and warrants that it has not dealt with any broker or
agent in the negotiation for or the obtaining of this Amendment other than Landlord’s Broker and Tenant’s Broker, and agrees to indemnify, defend and hold Tenant harmless
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from any and all cost or liability for compensation claimed by any other broker or agent employed or engaged by it or claiming to have been employed or engaged by it. 
Tenant shall have no obligation to compensate Landlord’s Broker or Tenant’s Broker due to this Amendment.

 
6.             No Default.  Tenant represents, warrants and covenants that, to the best of Tenant’s knowledge, Landlord and Tenant are not in default of any of their

respective obligations under the Lease and no event has occurred that, with the passage of time or the giving of notice (or both) would constitute a default by either Landlord
or Tenant thereunder.  Landlord represents, warrants and covenants that, to the best of Landlord’s knowledge, Landlord and Tenant are not in default of any of their respective
obligations under the Lease and no event has occurred that, with the passage of time or the giving of notice (or both) would constitute a default by either Landlord or Tenant
thereunder.

 
7.             Effect of Amendment.  Except as modified by this Amendment, the Lease and all the covenants, agreements, terms, provisions and conditions thereof shall

remain in full force and effect and are hereby ratified and affirmed.  The covenants, agreements, terms, provisions and conditions contained in this Amendment shall bind and
inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and, except as otherwise provided in the Lease, their respective assigns.  In the event of any conflict
between the terms contained in this Amendment and the Lease, the terms herein contained shall supersede and control the obligations and liabilities of the parties.  From and
after the date hereof, the term “Lease” as used in the Lease shall mean the Lease, as modified by this Amendment.

 



8.             Miscellaneous.  This Amendment becomes effective only upon execution and delivery hereof by Landlord and Tenant. The captions of the paragraphs and
subparagraphs in this Amendment are inserted and included solely for convenience and shall not be considered or given any effect in construing the provisions hereof.  All
exhibits hereto are incorporated herein by reference.

 
9.             Counterparts.  This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts that, when taken together, shall constitute one original.
 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have hereunto set their hands as of the date and year first above written, and acknowledge that they possess the

requisite authority to enter into this transaction and to execute this Amendment.
 

LANDLORD:
 
BMR-217TH PLACE LLC,
a Delaware limited liability company
 
By:
Name:
Title:
 
 
TENANT:
 
SONUS PHARMACEUTICALS, INC.,
a Delaware corporation
 
By:
Name:
Title:
 

 
EXHIBIT A

 
PREMISES

 
[Floor Plan]

 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

 
STATE OF              §

§
COUNTY OF              §
 

On                  , 200   , before me, a Notary Public in and for said state, personally appeared                                              , personally known to me(or proved to me on
the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized
capacity, in that by his signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal.
 

  
, Notary Public

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
 

STATE OF             §
§

COUNTY OF               §
 

On                  , 200   , before me, a Notary Public in and for said state, personally appeared                                                     , personally known to me(or proved to me
on the basis of satisfactory evidence) to be the person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument and acknowledged to me that he executed the same in his authorized
capacity, in that by his signature on the instrument the person, or the entity upon behalf of which the person acted, executed the instrument.

 
WITNESS my hand and official seal.
 

  
, Notary Public
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Exhibit 23.1 

  CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM 

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the following Registration Statements:

(1) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-80623) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Purchase Plan-1991; 

(2) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-36093) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Purchase Plan-1991; 

(3) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-56933) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Purchase Plan-1991; 

(4) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-87897) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock Option and
Restricted Stock Purchase Plan-1991, 1995 Stock Option Plan for Directors, Employee Stock Purchase Plan, and1999 Nonqualified Stock Incentive Plan; 

(5) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-49892) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 1999 Nonqualified Stock Incentive Plan and 2000 Stock
Incentive Plan; 

(6) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-56704) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 2000 Stock Incentive Plan and 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan and
Trust; 

(7) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-135697) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 2000 Stock Incentive Plan; 

(8) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-136393) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Plan; 

(9) Registration Statement (Form S-8 No. 333-1444552) pertaining to the Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., 2007 Performance Incentive Plan and 401(k) Profit Sharing
Plan and Trust; 

(10) Registration Statement (Form S-3 No. 333-115876, No. 333-64966, No. 333-82414, No. 333-107987, No. 333-123763, No. 333-128030, and No. 333-144553)
pertaining to the registration for resale of shares of common stock of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and in the related Prospectuses;

of our reports dated March 14, 2008, with respect to the financial statements of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. and the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc., included in this Annual Report (Form 10-K) for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Seattle, Washington
March 14, 2008
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Exhibit 31.1 

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

        I, Michael A. Martino, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2008

  /s/  MICHAEL A. MARTINO      

Michael A. Martino
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2 

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15d-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

        I, Alan Fuhrman, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc.; 

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements
made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report; 

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 

4. The registrant's other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have: 

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure
that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of
the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant's internal control over financial reporting; and 

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions): 

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: March 14, 2008

  /s/  ALAN FUHRMAN      

Alan Fuhrman
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1 

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and U.S.C. Section 1350

        I, Michael A. Martino, President and Chief Executive Officer of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the "Company"), certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31, 2006 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and 

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 14, 2008

  /s/  MICHAEL A. MARTINO      

Michael A. Martino
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Exhibit 32.2 

Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and U.S.C. Section 1350

        I, Alan Fuhrman, Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Sonus Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (the "Company"), certify, pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b) or Rule 15d-14(b)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31, 2006 (the "Report") fully complies with the requirements of
Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m or 780(d)); and 

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 14, 2008

  /s/  ALAN FUHRMAN      

Alan Fuhrman
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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	Section 1.              Law, Certificate of Incorporation and By-Laws
	1.1.          These by-laws are subject to the certificate of incorporation of the corporation.  In these by-laws, references to law, the certificate of incorporation and by-laws mean the law, the provisions of the certificate of incorporation and the by-laws as from time to time in effect.

	Section 2.              Stockholders
	2.1.          Annual Meeting.  The annual meeting of stockholders shall be held at 10:00 a.m. on the second Tuesday in May in each year, unless that day be a legal holiday at the place where the meeting is to be held, in which case the meeting shall be held at the same hour on the next succeeding day not a legal holiday, or at such other date and time as shall be designated from time to time by the board of directors and stated in the notice of the meeting, at which they shall elect a board of directors and transact such other business as may be required by law or these by-laws or as may properly come before the meeting.
	2.2.          Special Meetings.  A special meeting of the stockholders may be called at any time by the chairman of the board, if any, the president or the board of directors.  A special meeting of the stockholders shall be called by the secretary, or in the case of the death, absence, incapacity or refusal of the secretary, by an assistant secretary or some other officer, upon application of a majority of the directors.  Any such application shall state the purpose or purposes of the proposed meeting.  Any such call shall state the place, date, hour, and purposes of the meeting.
	2.3.          Place of Meeting.  All meetings of the stockholders for the election of directors or for any other purpose shall be held at such place within or without the State of Delaware as may be determined from time to time by the chairman of the board, if any, the president or the board of directors.  Any adjourned session of any meeting of the stockholders shall be held at the place designated in the vote of adjournment.
	2.4.          Notice of Meetings.  Except as otherwise provided by law, a written notice of each meeting of stockholders stating the place, day and hour thereof and, in the case of a special meeting, the purposes for which the meeting is called, shall be given not less than ten nor more than sixty days before the meeting, to each stockholder entitled to vote thereat, and to each stockholder who, by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, is entitled to notice, by leaving such notice with him or at his residence or usual place of business, or by depositing it in the United States mail, postage prepaid, and addressed to such stockholder at his address as it appears in the records of the corporation.  Such notice shall be given by the secretary, or by an officer or person designated by the board of directors, or in the case of a special meeting by the officer calling the meeting.  As to any adjourned session of any meeting of stockholders, notice of the adjourned meeting need not be given if the time and place thereof are announced at the meeting at which the adjournment was taken except that if the adjournment is for more than thirty days or if after the adjournment a new record
	date is set for the adjourned session, notice of any such adjourned session of the meeting shall be given in the manner heretofore described.  No notice of any meeting of stockholders or any adjourned session thereof need be given to a stockholder if a written waiver of notice, executed before or after the meeting or such adjourned session by such stockholder, is filed with the records of the meeting or if the stockholder attends such meeting without objecting at the beginning of the meeting to the transaction of any business because the meeting is not lawfully called or convened.  Neither the business to be transacted at, nor the purpose of, any meeting of the stockholders or any adjourned session thereof need be specified in any written waiver of notice.
	2.5.          Quorum of Stockholders.  At any meeting of the stockholders a quorum as to any matter shall consist of a majority of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, except where a larger quorum is required by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws.  Any meeting may be adjourned from time to time by a majority of the votes properly cast upon the question, whether or not a quorum is present.  If a quorum is present at an original meeting, a quorum need not be present at an adjourned session of that meeting.  Shares of its own stock belonging to the corporation or to another corporation, if a majority of the shares entitled to vote in the election of directors of such other corporation is held, directly or indirectly, by the corporation, shall neither be entitled to vote nor be counted for quorum purposes; provided, however, that the foregoing shall not limit the right of any corporation to vote stock, including but not limited to its own stock, held by it in a fiduciary capacity.
	2.6.          Action by Vote.  When a quorum is present at any meeting, a plurality of the votes properly cast for election to any office shall elect to such office and a majority of the votes properly cast upon any question other than an election to an office shall decide the question, except when a larger vote is required by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws.  No ballot shall be required for any election unless requested by a stockholder present or represented at the meeting and entitled to vote in the election.
	2.7.          Action without Meetings.  Unless otherwise provided in the certificate of incorporation, any action required or permitted to be taken by stockholders for or in connection with any corporate action may be taken without a meeting, without prior notice and without a vote, if a consent or consents in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by the holders of outstanding stock having not less than the minimum number of votes that would be necessary to authorize or take such action at a meeting at which all shares entitled to vote thereon were present and voted and shall be delivered to the corporation by delivery to its registered office in Delaware by hand or certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, to its principal place of business or to an officer or agent of the corporation having custody of the book in which proceedings of meetings of stockholders are recorded.  Each such written consent shall bear the date of signature of each stockholder who signs the consent.  No written consent shall be effective to take the corporate action referred to therein unless written consents signed by a number of stockholders sufficient to take such action are delivered to the corporation in the manner specified in this paragraph within sixty days of the earliest dated consent so delivered.
	2.8.          Proxy Representation.  Every stockholder may authorize another person or persons to act for him by proxy in all matters in which a stockholder is entitled to participate, whether by waiving notice of any meeting, objecting to or voting or participating at a meeting, or expressing consent or dissent without a meeting.  Every proxy must be signed by the stockholder or by his attorney-in-fact.  No proxy shall be voted or acted upon after three years from its date unless such proxy provides for a longer period.  A duly executed proxy shall be irrevocable if it states that it is irrevocable and, if, and only as long as, it is coupled with an interest sufficient in law to support an irrevocable power.  A proxy may be made irrevocable regardless of whether the interest with which it is coupled is an interest in the stock itself or an interest in the corporation generally.  The authorization of a proxy may but need not be limited to specified action, provided, however, that if a proxy limits its authorization to a meeting or meetings of stockholders, unless otherwise specifically provided such proxy shall entitle the holder thereof to vote at any adjourned session but shall not be valid after the final adjournment thereof.
	2.9.          Inspectors.  The directors or the person presiding at the meeting may, but need not, appoint one or more inspectors of election and any substitute inspectors to act at the meeting or any adjournment thereof.  Each inspector, before entering upon the discharge of his duties, shall take and sign an oath faithfully to execute the duties of inspector at such meeting with strict impartiality and according to the best of his ability.  The inspectors, if any, shall determine the number of shares of stock outstanding and the voting power of each, the shares of stock represented at the meeting, the existence of a quorum, the validity and effect of proxies, and shall receive votes, ballots or consents, hear and determine all challenges and questions arising in connection with the right to vote, count and tabulate all votes, ballots or consents, determine the result, and do such acts as are proper to conduct the election or vote with fairness to all stockholders.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that a stockholder seeks to nominate one or more directors pursuant to Section 3.3 of these by-laws, the directors shall appoint two inspectors, who shall not be affiliated with the Corporation, to determine whether a stockholder has complied with Section 3.3 of these by-laws.  If the inspector shall determine that a stockholder has not complied with Section 3.3 of these by-laws, the inspectors shall direct the person presiding over the meeting to declare to the meeting that a nomination was not made in accordance with the procedures prescribed by the by-laws; and the person presiding over the meeting shall so declare to the meeting and the defective nomination shall be disregarded.  On request of the person presiding at the meeting, the inspectors shall make a report in writing of any challenge, question or matter determined by them and execute a certificate of any fact found by them.
	2.10.        List of Stockholders.  The secretary shall prepare and make, at least ten days before every meeting of stockholders, a complete list of the stockholders entitled to vote at such meeting, arranged in alphabetical order and showing the address of each stockholder and the number of shares registered in his name.  The stock ledger shall be the only evidence as to who are stockholders entitled to examine such list or to vote in person or by proxy at such meeting.

	Section 3.              Board of Directors
	3.1.          Number.  The number of directors which shall constitute the whole board shall not be less than three (3) nor more than seven (7) in number.  The exact number of directors shall be fixed from time to time by a resolution adopted by a majority of directors.  Until otherwise fixed by the directors, the number of directors constituting the entire board of directors shall be five (5).  Within the foregoing limits, the number of directors may be increased at any time or from time to time by the stockholders or by the directors by vote of a majority of the directors then in office.  The number of directors may be decreased to any number permitted by the foregoing at any time either by the stockholders or by the directors by vote of a majority of the directors then in office, but only to eliminate vacancies existing by reason of the death, resignation or removal of one or more directors.  Directors need not be stockholders.
	3.2.          Tenure.  Except as otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, each director shall hold office until the successors of such director’s class are elected and qualified, or until he sooner dies, resigns, is removed or becomes disqualified.
	3.3.          Nomination.  Only persons who are nominated in accordance with the procedures set forth in this Section 3.3 shall be eligible for election as directors.  Nominations of persons for election to the board of directors may be made by or at the direction of the board of directors or by any stockholder of the corporation entitled to vote for the election of directors at the meeting who complies with the notice procedures set forth in this Section 3.3.  Such nominations, other than those made by or at the discretion of the board of directors, shall be made pursuant to timely notice in writing to the Secretary.  To be timely, a stockholder’s notice shall be delivered to or mailed and received at the principal executive offices of the corporation not less than 45 days nor more than 90 days prior to the meeting; provided, however, that in the event that less than 55 days’ notice or prior public disclosure of the date of the meeting is given or made to stockholders, notice by the stockholder to be timely must be so received not later than the close of business on the 10th day following the date on which such notice of the date of the meeting was mailed or such public disclosure was made.  Such stockholder’s notice shall set forth (A) as to each person whom the stockholder proposes to nominate for election or reelection as a director, (i) the name, age, business address and residence address of such person, (ii) the principal occupation or employment of such person, (iii) the class and number of shares of the capital stock of the corporation which are beneficially owned by such person and (iv) any other information relating to such person that would be required to be disclosed in solicitations of proxies for election of directors, or would be otherwise required, in each case pursuant to Regulation 14A promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (including without limitation such person’s written consent to being named in the proxy statement as a without limitation such person’s written consent to being named in the proxy statement as a nominee and to serving as a director if elected); and (B) as to the stockholder giving the notice (i) the name and address of such stockholder and (ii) the class and number of shares of the capital stock of the corporation which are beneficially owned (as defined by Rule 13d-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) by such stockholder.  If requested in writing by the Secretary at least 15 days in advance of the annual meeting, a stockholder whose shares are not registered in the name of such stockholder on the corporation’s books shall provide the Secretary, within ten days of such request, with documentary support for such claim of beneficial ownership.  At the request of the board of directors, any person nominated by the board of directors for election as a director shall furnish to the Secretary that information required to be set forth in a stockholder’s notice of nomination which pertains to the nominee.
	3.4.          Powers.  The business and affairs of the corporation shall be managed by or under the direction of the board of directors who shall have and may exercise all the powers of the corporation and do all such lawful acts and things as are not by law, the certificate of incorporation or these by-laws directed or required to be exercised or done by the stockholders.
	3.5.          Vacancies.  Vacancies and any newly created directorships resulting from any increase in the number of directors may be filled by vote of the stockholders at a meeting called for the purpose, or by a majority of the directors then in office, although less than a quorum, or by a sole remaining director.  When one or more directors shall resign from the board, effective at a future date, a majority of the directors then in office, including those who have resigned, shall have power to fill such vacancy or vacancies, the vote or action by writing thereon to take effect when such resignation or resignations shall become effective.  The directors shall have and may exercise all their powers notwithstanding the existence of one or more vacancies in their number, subject to any requirements of law or of the certificate of incorporation or of these by-laws as to the number of directors required for a quorum or for any vote or other actions.
	3.6.          Committees.  The board of directors may, by vote of a majority of the whole board, (a) designate, change the membership of or terminate the existence of any committee or committees, each committee to consist of one or more of the directors; (b) designated one or more directors as alternate members of any such committee who may replace any absent or disqualified member at any meeting of the committee; and (c) determine the extent to which each such committee shall have and may exercise the powers of the board of directors in the management of the business and affairs of the corporation, including the power to authorize the seal of the corporation to be affixed to all papers which require it and the power and authority to declare dividends or to authorize the issuance of stock; excepting, however, such powers which by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these or by these by-laws they are prohibited from so delegating.  In the absence or disqualification of any member of such committee and his alternate, if any, the member or members thereof present at any meeting and not disqualified from voting, whether or not constituting a quorum, may unanimously appoint another member of the board of directors to act at the meeting in the place of any such absent or disqualified member.  Except as the board of directors may otherwise determine, any committee may make rules for the conduct of its business, but unless otherwise provided by the board or such rules, its business shall be conducted as nearly as may be in the same manner as is provided by these by-laws for the conduct of business by the board of directors.  Each committee shall keep regular minutes of its meetings and report the same to the board of directors upon request.
	3.7.          Regular Meetings.  Regular meetings of the board of directors may be held without call or notice at such places within or without the State of Delaware and at such times as the board may from time to time determine, provided that notice of the first regular meeting following any such determination shall be given to absent directors.  A regular meeting of the directors may be held without call or notice immediately after and at the same place as the annual meeting of the stockholders.
	3.8.          Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the board of directors may be held at any time and at any place within or without the State of Delaware designated in the notice of the meting, when called by the chairman of the board, if any, the president, or by one-third or more in number of the directors, reasonable notice thereof being given to each director by the secretary or by the chairman of the board, if any, the president or any one of the directors calling the meeting.
	3.9.          Notice.  It shall be reasonable and sufficient notice to a director to send notice by mail at least forty-eight hours or by telegram or facsimile at least twenty-four hours before the meeting addressed to him at his usual or last known business or residence address or to give notice to him in person or by telephone at least twenty-four hours before the meeting.  Notice of a meeting need not be given to any director if a written waiver of notice, executed by him before or after the meeting, is filed with the records of the meeting, or to any director who attends the meeting without protesting prior thereto or at its commencement the lack of notice to him.  Neither notice of a meeting nor a wavier of a notice need specify the purposes of the meeting.
	3.10.        Quorum.  Except as may be otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or these by-laws, at any meeting of the directors a majority of the directors then in office shall constitute a quorum; a quorum shall not in any case be less than one-third of the total number of directors constituting the whole board.  Any meeting may be adjourned from time to time by a majority of the votes cast upon the question, whether or not a quorum is present, and the meeting may be held as adjourned without further notice.
	3.11.        Action by Vote.  Except as may be otherwise provided by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, when a quorum is present at any meeting the vote of a majority of the directors present shall be the act of the board of directors.
	3.12.        Action Without a Meeting.  Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the board of directors or a committee thereof may be taken without a meeting if all the members of the board or of such committee, as the case may be, consent thereto in writing, and such writing or writings are filed with the records of the meetings of the board or of such committee.  Such consent shall be treated for all purposes as the act of the board or of such committee, as the case may be.
	3.13.        Participation in Meetings by Conference Telephone.  Members of the board of directors, or any committee designated by such board, may participate in a meeting of such board or committee by means of conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meting can hear each other or by any other means permitted by law.  Such participation shall constitute presence in person at such meeting.
	3.14.        Compensation.  In the discretion of the board of directors, each director may be paid such fees for his services as director and be reimbursed from his reasonable expenses incurred in the performance of his duties as director as the board of directors from time to time may determine.  Nothing contained in this section shall be construed to preclude any director from serving the corporation in any other capacity and receiving reasonable compensation therefor.
	3.15.        Interested Directors and Officers.
	(a)          No contract or transaction between the corporation and one or more of its directors or officers, or between the corporation and any other corporation, partnership, association, or other organization in which one or more of the corporation’s directors or officers are directors or officers, or have a financial interest, shall be void or voidable, solely for this reason, or solely because the director officer is present at or participates in the meeting of the board or committee thereof which authorizes the contract or transaction, or solely because his or their votes are counted for such purpose, if:
	(1)          The material facts as to his relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the board of directors or the committee, and the board or committee in good faith authorizes the contract or transaction by the affirmative votes of majority of the disinterested directors, even though the disinterested directors be less than a quorum: or
	(2)          The material facts as to his relationship or interest and as to the contract or transaction are disclosed or are known to the stockholder entitled to vote thereon, and the contract or transaction is specifically approved in good faith by vote of the stockholders; or
	(3)          The contract or transaction is fair as to the corporation as of the time it is authorized, approved or ratified by the board of directors, a committee thereof, or the stockholders.

	(b)          Common or interested directors may be counted in determining the presence of a quorum at a meeting of the board of directors or of a committee which authorized the contract or transaction.


	Section 4.              Officers and Agents.
	4.1.          Enumeration:  Qualification.  The officers of the corporation shall be a president, a treasurer, a secretary and such other officers, if any, as the board of directors from time to time may in its discretion elect or appoint including without limitation a chairman of the board, one or more vice presidents and a controller.  The corporation may also have such agents, if any, as the board of directors from time to time may in its discretion choose.  Any officer may be but none need be a director or stockholder.  Any two or more offices may be held by the same person.  Any officer may be required by the board of directors to secure the faithful performance of his duties to the corporation by giving bond in such amount and with sureties or otherwise as the board of directors may determine.
	4.2.          Powers.  Subject to law, to the certificate of incorporation and to the other provisions of these by-laws, each officer shall have, in addition to the duties and powers herein set forth, such duties and powers as are commonly incident to his office and such additional duties and powers as the board of directors may from time to time designate.
	4.3.          Election.  The officers may be elected by the board of directors at their first meeting following the annual meeting of the stockholders or at any other time.  At any time or from time to time the directors may delegate to any officer their power to elect or appoint any other officer or any agents.
	4.4.          Tenure.  Each officer shall hold office until the first meeting of the board of directors following the next annual meeting of the stockholders and until his respective successor is chosen and qualified unless a shorter period shall have been specified by the terms of his election or appointment, or in each case until he sooner dies, resigns, is removed or becomes disqualified.  Each agent shall retain his authority at the pleasure of the directors, or the officer by whom he was appointed or by the officer who then holds agent appointive power.
	4.5.          Chairman of the board of directors, President and Vice President.  The chairman of the board, if any, shall have such duties and powers as shall be designated from time to time by the
	board of directors.  Unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, the chairman of the board, or if there is none the chief executive officer, shall preside, or designate the person who shall preside, at all meetings of the stockholders and of the board of directors.
	4.6.          Chief Financial Officer and Assistant Treasurers.  Unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, the chief financial officer shall be the treasurer of the corporation and shall be in charge of its funds and valuable papers, and shall have such other duties and powers as may be designated from time to time by the board of directors or by the president.  If no controller is elected, the chief financial officer shall, unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, also have the duties and powers of the controller.
	4.7.          Controller and Assistant Controller.  If a controller is elected, he shall, unless the board of directors otherwise specifies, be the chief accounting officer of the corporation and be in charge of its books of account and accounting records, and of its accounting procedures.  He shall have such other duties and powers and may be designated from time to time by the board of directors, the president or the treasurer.
	4.8.          Secretary to the Assistant Secretaries.  The secretary shall record all proceedings of the stockholders, of the board of directors and of committees of the board of directors in a book or series of books to be kept therefore and shall file therein all actions by written consent of stockholders or directors.  In the absence of the secretary from any meeting, an assistant secretary, or if there be none or he is absent, a temporary secretary chosen at the meeting, shall record the proceedings thereof.  Unless a transfer agent has been appointed the secretary shall keep or cause to be kept the stock and transfer records of the corporation, which shall contain the names and record addresses of all stockholders and the number of shares registered in the name of each stockholder.  He shall have such other duties and powers as may from time to time be designated by the board of directors or the president.

	Section 5.              Resignations and Removals.
	5.1.          Any director or officer may resign at any time by delivering his resignation in writing to the chairman of the board, if any, the president, or the secretary or to a meeting of the board of directors.  Such resignation shall be effective upon receipt unless specified to be effective at some
	other time, and without in either case the necessity of its being accepted unless the resignation shall so state.  A director (including persons elected by directors to fill vacancies in the board) may be removed from office with or without cause by the vote of the holders of a majority of the shares issued and outstanding and entitled to vote in the election of directors.  The board of directors may at any time remove any officer either with or without cause.  The board of directors may at any time terminate or modify the authority of any agent.  No director of officer resigning and (except where a right to receive compensation shall be expressly provided in a duly authorized written agreement with the corporation) no director or officer removed shall have any right to any compensation as such director or officer for any period following his resignation or removal, or any right to damages on account of such removal, whether his compensation be by the month or by the year or otherwise; unless, in the case of a resignation, the directors, or, in the case of removal, the body acting on the removal, shall in their or its discretion provide for compensation.

	Section 6.              Vacancies.
	6.1.          If the office of the president or the treasurer or the secretary becomes vacant, the directors may elect a successor by vote of a majority of the directors then in office.  If the office of any other officer becomes vacant, any person or body empowered to elect or appoint that officer may choose a successor.  Each such successor shall hold office for the unexpired term, and in the case of the president, the treasurer and the secretary until his successor is chosen and qualified or in each case he sooner dies, resigns, is removed or becomes disqualified.  Any vacancy of a directorship shall be filled as specified in Section 3.5 of these by-laws.

	Section 7.              Capital Stock.
	7.1.          Stock Certificates.  The shares of the corporation shall be represented by certificates, provided that the board of directors of the corporation may provide by resolution or resolutions that some or all of any or all classes or series of its stock shall be uncertificated shares.  Any such resolution shall not apply to shares represented by a certificate until such certificate is surrendered to the corporation.  Notwithstanding the adoption of such a resolution by the board of directors, every holder of stock represented by certificates and upon request every holder of uncertificated shares shall be entitled to have a certificate signed by, or in the name of the corporation by the chairman or vice-chairman of the board of directors, if any, or the president or vice-president, and by the treasurer or an assistant treasurer, or by the secretary or an assistant secretary of such corporation representing the number of shares registered in certificate form.  Any or all of the signatures on the certificate may be a facsimile.  In case any officer, transfer agent or registrar who has signed or whose facsimile signature has been placed upon a certificate has ceased to be such officer, transfer agent or registrar before such certificate is issued, it may be issued by the corporation with the same effect as if he were such officer, transfer agent, or registrar at the time of issue.
	7.2.          Loss of Certificates.  In the case of the alleged theft, loss, destruction or mutilation of a certificate of stock, a duplicate certificate may be issued in place thereof, upon such terms, including receipt of a bond sufficient to indemnify the corporation against any claim on account thereof, as the board of directors may prescribe.

	Section 8.              Transfer of Shares of Stock.
	8.1.          Transfer on Books.  Subject to the restrictions, if any, stated or noted on the stock certificate, shares of stock may be transferred on the books of the corporation by the surrender to the
	corporation or its transfer agent of the certificate therefor properly endorsed or accompanied by a written assignment and power of attorney properly executed, with necessary transfer stamps affixed, and with such proof of the authenticity of signature as the board of directors or the transfer agent of the corporation may reasonably require.  Except as may be otherwise required by law, by the certificate of incorporation or by these by-laws, the corporation shall be entitled to treat the record holder of stock as shown on its books as the owner of such stock for all purposes, including the payment of dividends and the right to receive notice and to vote or to give any consent with respect thereto and to be held liable for such calls and assessments, if any, as may lawfully be made thereon, regardless of any transfer, pledge or other disposition of such stock until the shares have been properly transferred on the books of the corporation.
	8.2.          Record Date and Closing Transfer Books.  In order that the corporation may determine the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at any meeting of stockholders or any adjournment thereof, the board of directors may fix a record date, which record date shall not precede the date upon which the resolution fixing the record date is adopted by the board of directors, and which record date shall not be more than sixty nor less than ten days before the date of such meeting.  If no such record date is fixed by the board of directors, the record date for determining the stockholders entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall be at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which notice is given, or, if notice is waived, at the close of business on the day next preceding the day on which the meeting is held.  A determination of stockholders or record entitled to notice of or to vote at a meeting of stockholders shall apply to any adjournment of the meeting; provided, however, that the board of directors may fix a new record date for the adjourned meeting.

	Section 9.              Indemnification.
	9.1.          Right to Indemnification.  Each person who was or is made a party or is threatened to be made a party to or is otherwise involved in any action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative (hereinafter a “proceeding”), by reason of the fact that he or she is or was a director officer of the corporation or is or was serving at the request of the corporation as a director or officer of another corporation or of a partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including service with respect to employee benefit plans (hereinafter an “indemnitee”), whether the basis of such proceeding is alleged action in an official capacity as a director or officer or in any other capacity while serving as a director or officer, shall be indemnified and held harmless by the corporation to the fullest extent authorized by the Delaware General Corporation Law, as the same exists or may hereafter be amended (but, in the case of any such amendment, only to the extent that such amendment permits the corporation to provide broader indemnification rights than such law permitted the corporation to provide prior to such amendment), against all expense, liability and loss (including attorneys’ fees, judgments, fines, ERISA excise taxes or penalties and amounts paid in settlement) reasonably incurred or suffered by such indemnitee in connection therewith and such indemnification shall continue as to an indemnitee who has ceased to be a director or officer and shall inure to the benefit of the indemnitee’s heirs, executors and administrators; provided, however, that, except as provided in this Section 9.1 with respect to proceedings to enforce rights to indemnification, the corporation shall indemnify any such indemnitee in connection with a proceeding (or part thereof) initiated by such indemnitee only if such proceeding (or part thereof) was authorized by the board of directors of the corporation.  The right to indemnification conferred in this Section 9.1 shall be a contract right and shall include the right to be paid by the corporation the expenses incurred in defending any such proceeding in advance of its final disposition (hereinafter an “advancement of expenses”); provided, however, that, if the Delaware General Corporation Law requires, an advancement of expenses incurred by an indemnitee in his or her capacity as a director or officer (and not in any other capacity in which service was or is rendered by such indemnitee, including without limitation, service to an employee benefit plan) shall be made only upon delivery to the corporation of an undertaking, by or on behalf of such indemnitee, to repay all amounts so advanced if it shall ultimately be determined by final judicial decision from which there is not further right to appeal that such indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified for such expenses under this Section 9 or otherwise (hereinafter an “undertaking”).
	9.2.          Right of Indemnitee to Bring Suit.  If a claim under Section 9.1 of these by-laws is not paid in full by the corporation within forty-five (45) days after a written claim has been received by the corporation, the indemnitee may at any time thereafter bring suit against the corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim.  If successful in whole or part in any such suit or in a suit brought by the corporation to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the indemnitee shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting or defending such suit.  In (i) any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to indemnification hereunder (but not in a suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right to an advancement of expenses) it shall be a defense that, and (ii) any suit by the corporation to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking the corporation shall be entitled to recover such expenses upon a final adjudication that, the indemmitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the Delaware General Corporation Law.  Neither the failure of the corporation (including its board of directors, independent legal counsel, or its stockholders) to have made a determination prior
	to the commencement of such suit that indemnification of the indemnitee is proper in the circumstances because the indemnitee has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in the Delaware General Corporation Law, nor an actual determination by the corporation (including its board of directors, independent legal counsel, or its stockholders) that the indemnitee has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall create a presumption that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct or, in the case of such a suit brought by indemnitee, be a defense to such suit.  In any suit brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right hereunder, or by the corporation to recover an advancement of expenses pursuant to the terms of an undertaking, the burden of proving that the indemnitee is not entitled to be indemnified or to such advancement of expenses under this Section 9 or otherwise shall be on the corporation.
	9.3.          Non-Exclusivity of Rights.  The rights of indemnification and to the advancement of expenses conferred in this Section 9 shall not be exclusive of any other right which any person may have or thereafter acquire under any statue, provision of the Certificate of Incorporation, by-law agreement, vote of stockholders or disinterested directors or otherwise and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs and legal representatives of such person.
	9.4.          Insurance.  The corporation may maintain insurance, at its expense, to protect itself and any director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any expense, liability or loss, whether or not the corporation would have the power to indemnify such person against such expense, liability or loss under the Delaware General Corporation Law.
	9.5.          Indemnification of Employees or Agents of the Corporation.  The corporation may, to the extent authorized from time to time by the board of directors, grant rights to indemnification and to the advancement of expenses, to any employee or agent of the corporation to the fullest extent of the provisions of this Section 9 with respect to the indemnification and advancement of expenses of directors or officers of the corporation.
	9.6.          Indemnification Contracts.  The board of directors is authorized to enter into a contract with any director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation, or any person serving at the request of the corporation as a director, officer, employee or agent of another corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, including employee benefit plans, providing for indemnification rights equivalent to or, if the board of directors so determines, greater than, those provided for in this Section 9.
	9.7.          Effect of Amendment.  Any amendment, repeal or modification of any provision of this Section 9 by the stockholders or the directors of the corporation shall not adversely affect any right or protection of a director or officer of the corporation existing at the time of such amendment, repeal or modification.

	Section 10.            Corporate Seal.
	10.1.        Subject to alteration by the directors, the seal of the corporation shall consist of a flat-faced circular die with the word “Delaware” and the name of the corporation cut or engraved thereon, together with such other words, dates or images as may be approved from time to time by the directors.

	Section 11.            Execution of Papers.
	11.1.        Except as the board of directors may generally or in particular cases authorize the execution thereof in some other manner, all deeds, leases, transfers, contracts, bonds, notes, checks, drafts or other obligations made, accepted or endorsed by the corporation shall be signed by the chairman of the board, if any, the president, a vice president or the treasurer.

	Section 12.            Fiscal Year.
	12.1.        The fiscal year of the corporation shall be fixed by resolution of the Board of Directors.

	Section 13.            Amendments.
	13.1.        These by-laws may be adopted, amended or repealed by vote of a majority of the directors then in office or by vote of a majority of the stock outstanding and entitled to vote.  Any by-law, whether adopted, amended or repealed by the stockholders or directors, may be amended or reinstated by the stockholders or the directors.

	In the definitions below, each Rentable Area (as defined below) is expressed in rentable square footage.  Rentable Area and Tenant’s Pro Rata Share are all subject to adjustment as provided in this Lease.

